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Chairman’s Statement
ERERE

To our shareholders

In 2015, the Group reported a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$105.26 million,
a 55.79% decrease from the HK$238.08 million
recorded a year ago. This decrease in profit was
mainly attributable to (i) the recognition of a loss of
HK$66.29 million arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
whereas a gain of HK$27.48 million was recognised in
the previous year and (ii) a HK$42.84 million increase
in administrative expenses.

During the year, we have spent considerable efforts
to create a stable income stream by expanding our
property investment business into Mainland China.
In the fourth quarter of 2015, we completed the
acquisitions of Smart Title Limited and Best Volume
Investments Limited for expanding our property
investment business into Mainland China. Smart Title
Limited and its subsidiaries have two major assets,
which are (i) the rights to manage and operate a
membership-based golf club and resort in Beijing,
Mainland China (the “Club”) up to 31 December
2051 and (ii) the rights to develop and operate a
land adjacent to the Club (the “Subject Land”) and
the rights to manage the properties erected on the
Subject Land up to 30 January 2062. The principal
asset of Best Volume Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries is a commercial building located at
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, Mainland China. Except
for the Subject Land being developed into (i) a low-
density deluxe hotel villas community and (ii) a high-
ended hotel apartment complex, the Club and the
commercial building have generated a monthly
rental income of RMB3.12 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3.73 million) to the Group.

In addition to creating a stable income stream to
the Group, we have taken initiatives to improve the
profitability of our design and sale of jewelry products
business. During the year, we have strengthened our
direct export selling and product design capabilities
by recruiting a number of experienced sales
executives and a designer. In addition, we participated
various trade fairs to cultivate our direct customer
base in order to make our design and sale of jewelry
products business to be one of the key drivers of our
growth.
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As EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”,
now known as SkyNet Group Limited and stock
code: 8176), a then 70.18% owned subsidiary of
the Company, did not perform as intended and we
expect the sluggish operating environment faced by
EDS Wellness will persist for a period of time, EDS
Wellness has introduced six new shareholders by
issuing 345,000,000 new shares and 30,000,000 new
convertible preferred shares to them in November
2015. We believe that the introduction of new
shareholders represents a good opportunity for
EDS Wellness to (i) raise additional funds for future
business development in in-flight WLAN and WIFI
engineering and services business in parallel to its
existing business and (ii) leverage the expertise and
business network of one of the six new shareholders
to take advantage of the growth in in-flight WLAN
and WIFI engineering and services business sector in
Mainland China. Upon the issue of the new shares and
the new convertible preferred shares by EDS Wellness
in November 2015, we are deemed to dispose of a
57.67% shareholding interest in EDS Wellness and
EDS Wellness has ceased to be our subsidiary. Our
investment in EDS Wellness has been accounted
for as available-for-sale financial assets and we will
realise it as and when appropriate.

We believe that the economic outlook for 2016
remains uncertain as there are uncertainties over the
extent of Mainland China’s slowdown, weaker oil
prices and falling inflation expectation. In the recent
Federal Open Market Committee policy meeting, the
Federal Reserve has scaled back the number of times
it expects to raise interest rates this year, warning
that global economic and financial developments
continue to pose risks. Given the uncertain backdrop,
we continue to solidify our fundamentals by refining
our business operations and developing our existing
businesses in a cautious manner. However, we
recognise that continued certainty often coincides
with a good opportunity to invest. Accordingly, we
will look at possible business investments in order
to further diversify our businesses and broaden our
revenue base.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

On 11 June 2014, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital of Rich Daily Group Limited
(“Rich Daily”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Accordingly, the results of Rich Daily
are presented separately as discontinued operations
in the year ended 31 December 2014 for financial
reporting purpose. The principal activity of Rich Daily
is the provision of management services.

On 6 November 2015, EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (“EDS Wellness”, now known as SkyNet
Group Limited and stock code: 8176), a then 70.18%
owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted and
issued 345,000,000 new shares and 30,000,000 new
convertible preferred shares to six subscribers. As
a result, the Group’s shareholding interest in EDS
Wellness was diluted from 70.18% to 12.51% and
EDS Wellness has ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. Accordingly, the results of EDS Wellness
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “EDS Wellness
Group”) are presented separately as discontinued
operations in the year ended 31 December 2015 for
financial reporting purpose. The EDS Wellness Group
is principally engaged in the development, distribution
and marketing of personal care treatments, products
and services.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted
to HK$105,256,000, a 55.79% decrease from
HK$238,077,000 for the previous year. The decrease
in profit attributable to owners of the Company is due
to the decrease in profit for the year from continuing
operations, which is discussed below.

Results of continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recorded revenue of HK$184,780,000, a 108.39%
increase from HK$88,671,000 for the previous year.
The increase in revenue was attributable to (i) the full
year effect of the Group’s design and sale of jewelry
products business as it commenced operations in
October 2014, (ii) the increased sale and marketing
efforts in direct selling the Group’s jewelry products
to Europe, the Middle East and the United States
of America (the “US”) and (iii) the expansion of the
Group’s property investment business into Mainland
China in the fourth quarter of 2015. Of the total
revenue, HK$72,529,000 was generated from money
lending, HK$117,327,000 was generated from sale of
jewelry products, HK$9,099,000 was generated from

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Bt %5 [o] 8

A—ZE—MNFERA+T—H FXEBHEERLD
AERZ2EK B2 FRich Daily Group
Limited ([Rich Daily|) 2 &2 BT °
Hit - KR/ EMS > Rich DailyBE=-F
—ME+ A=+ HLEEEZEEEBFLY
ATDRIEEET - Rich Daily 2T EXEK A
RIEEERT -

RZE—-HRE+—-—A~H> —BEBAXQ2AE
BE#EB70.18% 2 [ff B X S1EDS Wellness
Holdings Limited ((EDS Wellness] ' 1
MEEBEBER AR RKBHNRIE :8176)
B 7Sz 58 B8 A i 2% & 2% 17 345,000,000 BR 37
% 13 % 30,000,000 % %7 7] # iR 18 5T IR o
Lt REBENEDS Wellness 2 IR &5 #%
70.18% # 8 £12.51% + MEDS Wellness
TEHAXQATZHEB LT - At FITIER
£ M= EDS WellnessEREHE QB (54
[EDS Wellness&B NEHEZ=-Z—HF+=
B=+—RLEEE£EEBENNATKLELR
BEETL o EDS Wellness EB T ER B/ -
DHERIEEEAEEERE  ERERS -

KA BEBAELBZE=-_=E—HE+=A
=+—HIEFEZHEFAE105,256,0008 T
B &% 2 238,077,000 TR 4 55.79% ° &
REEEANELBFBO THRRBFELSE
EBAFEERABLIEY > BREHROT ©

FESEEB o RE

REBEZ-ZE-—HF+=-A=+—HLEE"
REEEBINZ184,780,0008 7T ' BWEF
288,671,000 & 7T 12 1N 108.39% o Uk 5 12 N
DROAEERR T REEKRSEERZEE
S ZEBN-_ZS-NE+ABRKBEE .,
(IVAEEEHEZEEMN PEREINBRESREH
TZBDHREERZHEERTBEREE
B2 R)AEEBR=-SE-—AFENZER
MERECEBMEZETERM - BWRHEF
72,529,000 8 TREBE »117,327,00058 T
REHEKRSZTER » 9,099,0008 TREYE



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

property investment and a loss of HK$14,175,000
was generated from sale of financial assets. Profit
for the year from continuing operations amounted
to HK$122,589,000, a 54.83% decrease from
HK$271,412,000 for the previous year. This decrease
was mainly attributable to (i) the recognition of a loss
of HK$66,286,000 arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
whereas a gain of HK$27,483,000 was recognised in
the previous year and (ii) a HK$42,835,000 increase in
administrative expenses.

Gross profit for sale of jewelry products increased
by 910.67% from HK$2,427,000 in the year ended 31
December 2014 to HK$24,529,000 in the year ended
31 December 2015 due to (i) the full year effect of the
Group’s design and sale of jewelry products business
as it commenced operations in October 2014 and
(i) the increased sale and marketing efforts in direct
selling the Group’s jewelry products to Europe, the
Middle East and the US. Gross profit margin for
sale of jewelry products improved from 17.00% in
the year ended 31 December 2014 to 20.91% in the
year ended 31 December 2015. Such improvement
was attributable to the increase in direct selling the
Group’s jewelry products to customers in Europe, the
Middle East and the US.

Investment and other income increased by 125.19%
from HK$2,116,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014 to HK$4,765,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015. This increase was mainly attributable
to the dividend income of HK$3,111,000 received from
the Group’s equity portfolio during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Other gains and losses represent items of income and
expenses, which are material and/or extraordinary
in nature. Major items of other gains and losses
recorded by the Group during the year are as follows:

(@) In April 2015, the Group disposed of 70,840,000
shares in Lajin Entertainment Network Group
Limited (“Lajin Entertainment”, formerly known
as China Star Cultural Media Group Limited
and stock code: 8172) at an average price of
approximately HK$1.41 per share on open market
pursuant to the 12-month mandate granted to the
directors by the shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 13 January 2015
and recognised a cumulative gain reclassified
from equity to profit or loss upon derecognition
of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$74,378,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

(o) On 6 November 2015, EDS Wellness allotted
and issued 345,000,000 new shares and
30,000,000 new convertible preferred shares
to the six subscribers. As a result, the Group’s
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness was
diluted from 70.18% to 12.51% and EDS
Wellness has ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company. Accordingly, the Group was
deemed to dispose of a 57.67% shareholding
interest in EDS Wellness and recognised a gain
of HK$245,072,000 on deemed disposal of a
subsidiary.

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
remeasured its investment in 52,500,000 shares
in EDS Wellness at market price and recognised
an impairment loss in respect of available-for-
sale financial assets reclassified from equity to
profit or loss of HK$73,500,000.

(d) At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed impairment tests in respect of the
goodwill and the intangible assets arising from
the acquisition of the entire issued shares in and
the shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title Limited
(“Smart Title”) with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent valuer and
recognised an impairment loss in respect of
goodwill of HK$48,492,000.

(e) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
remeasured its equity portfolio at market prices
and recognised a loss of HK$66,286,000 arising
on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent
staff costs of sales team and overseas travelling
expenses incurred by the Group’s design and sale
of jewelry products business. Selling and distribution
expenses increased by 793.40% from HK$409,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2014 to HK$3,654,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2015. This increase was
attributable to (i) the full year effect of the Group’s
design and sale of jewelry products business as it
commenced operations in October 2014 and (ii) the
increased sale and marketing efforts in direct selling
the Group’s jewelry products to Europe, the Middle
East and the US.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Results of continuing operations (Continued)

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$88,036,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015, a 94.77%
increase from HK$45,201,000 for the previous year.
This increase was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase of HK$14,403,000 in discretionary bonuses
paid to the directors and staff, (ii) the increase of
HK$7,411,000 in equity-settled share-based payment
expenses arising from the grant of share options, (iii)
the increase of HK$6,835,000 in legal and professional
fees due to the increased corporate activities in
acquiring companies for expanding the Group’s
property investment business into Mainland China, (iv)
the first year recognition of amortisation of intangible
assets of HK$5,114,000, and (v) the full year effect
of the Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business as it commenced operations in October
2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Spark
Concept Group Limited (“Spark Concept”), a 49%
owned associate of the Group, and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Spark Concept Group”) reported
a consolidated loss of HK$2,728,000. As the Group’s
share of post-acquisition losses equals to its interests
in Spark Concept, no further share of loss for the year
was recognised.

Finance costs represent interest on mortgage loan
paid by the Group.

Income tax expense increased from HK$6,898,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2014 to HK$8,253,000
in the year ended 31 December 2015. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the decrease in prior year
over-provision from HK$2,077,000 in the year ended
31 December 2014 to HK$21,000 in the year ended 31
December 2015.

Results of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to HK$22,988,000,
which represents the results of the EDS Wellness
Group attributable to the Group for the period from 1
January 2015 to 6 November 2015, being the date on
which EDS Wellness ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The operations of the EDS Wellness Group
are discussed in Operations Review below.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, issue of new shares and borrowings. Equity
attributable to owners of the Company increased
from HK$2,144,651,000 at 31 December 2014 to
HK$3,352,310,000 at 31 December 2015. This
increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
share capital and share premium by HK$1,164,819,000
resulted from the allotment and issue of 2,132,333,243
new shares during the year and (ii) the increase in
retained profits by HK$69,364,000.

At 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$509,341,000 (2014:
HK$384,778,000).

At 31 December 2015, the total borrowings of
the Group amounted to HK$214,007,000 (31
December 2014: HK$10,374,000), comprising (i) the
mortgage loan of RMB154,110,000 (equivalent to
HK$184,007,000), which is carrying floating rate at
the benchmark interest rate of The People’s Bank
of China upward by 10.00% per annum, secured
by the Group’s investment property located at No.
33 Nonglinxia Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Mainland China (the “Guangzhou Property”) and
maturing on 21 April 2022 and (ii) a promissory note of
HK$30,000,000 issued to Sino Credit Holdings Limited
(“Sino Credit”, stock code: 628), which is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and maturing within three business
days after the date of a final and effective judgement
or an effective and binding settlement agreement of
the lawsuit between the Group and Zhanjiang City
No. 4 Construction Engineering Co., Ltd (JEI M
BETIEERAT, the “Contractor”), a construction
engineering company, in respect of not paying certain
payment under the construction contract of the
Guangzhou Property. The increase in borrowings was
attributable to the initial recognition of the mortgage
loan obtained by a wholly owned subsidiary of Best
Volume Investments Limited (“Best Volume”) and the
issue of the promissory note for settling part of the
consideration upon completion of the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Best Volume on 12
November 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 6.38%
(2014: 0.48%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$965,369,000
(2014: HK$1,695,226,000) and 3.50 (2014: 20.52)
respectively.

Capital structure

During the year, the capital structure of the Company
had the following changes:

(@) In June 2015, the Company allotted and issued
42,330,000 new shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.69 per share pursuant to the exercise
of share options granted to a director, the
employees and external consultants of the Group
under the Company’s share option scheme.

(b) On 24 August 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 590,003,243 new shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.70 per share by way of rights to
the qualifying shareholders of the Company on
the basis of one new share to every one existing
share held on 28 July 2015. The net proceeds
from the rights issue of HK$403,172,000 were
used for settling part of the consideration for
the acquisition of the entire issued shares in and
the shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title on 6
October 2015.

(c) On 6 October 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 1,500,000,000 new shares at an issue
price of HK$0.70 per share to the shareholders of
China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited
(“diuhao Health”, stock code: 419) pursuant to
the exercise of the share entitlement note issued
to Jiuhao Health in satisfaction of part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the entire
issued shares in and the shareholder’s loan due
by Smart Title.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Use of proceeds from a fund raising activity

On 24 January 2013, the Company raised
HK$29,931,000 by way of placing of 47,000,000 new
shares under general mandate at a price of HK$0.645
per share. The net proceeds from the placing were
intended to be used for property investment in Hong
Kong in order to enrich the Group’s investment
property portfolio. On 7 September 2015, the
Company announced the allocation of the net
proceeds from the placing to finance part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Best Volume. On 12 November 2015,
the net proceeds from the placing of HK$29,931,000
were used for settling part of the consideration.

Material acquisitions

During the year, the Group had the following material
acquisitions:

(@) On 6 October 2015, the Group acquired the
entire issued shares in and the shareholder’s
loan due by Smart Title at a consideration of
HK$1,650,000,000, of which HK$600,000,000
was settled by cash and HK$1,050,000,000
was settled by the allotment and issue of
1,500,000,000 new shares at an issue price
of HK$0.70 per share. Smart Title and its
subsidiaries have two major assets, which are (i)
the rights to manage and operate a membership-
based golf club and resort in Beijing, Mainland
China (the “Club”) up to 31 December 2051 and
(ii) the rights to develop and operate a piece of
580 Chinese arces land adjacent to the Club (the
“Subject Land”) and the rights to manage the
properties erected on the Subject Land up to 30
January 2062. The acquisition constitutes a very
substantial acquisition of the Company under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and was
approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 17 September
2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Material acquisitions (Continued)

(b)

On 12 November 2015, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of Best Volume at
a consideration of HK$400,000,000, of which
HK$370,000,000 was settled by cash and
HK$30,000,000 was settled by the issue of the
promissory note. The principal asset of Best
Volume and its subsidiaries is the Guangzhou
Property. The acquisition constitutes a major
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was approved by the shareholders at
the Company’s special general meeting held on 6
November 2015.

Material disposals

During the year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

(a)

In April 2015, the Group disposed of
1,723,854,545 shares in China Star Entertainment
Limited (“China Star”, stock code: 326) at an
average price of approximately HK$0.133 per
share on open market pursuant to the 12-month
mandate granted to the directors by the
shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 18 December 2014. The disposal
constitutes a major transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules and was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 18 December 2014.

In April 2015, the Group disposed of 70,840,000
shares in Lajin Entertainment at an average
price of approximately HK$1.41 per share on
open market pursuant to the 12-month mandate
granted to the directors by the shareholders at
the Company’s special general meeting held
on 13 January 2015. The disposal constitutes
a major transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules and was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 13 January 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Material disposals (Continued)

(c) On 6 November 2015, EDS Wellness allotted and
issued 345,000,000 new shares and 30,000,000
new convertible preferred shares to the six
subscribers. As a result, the Group was deemed
to dispose of a 57.67% shareholding interest
in EDS Wellness and has lost its control over
EDS Wellness. The deemed disposal of the
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness constitutes
a major transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules and was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 30 October 2015. Upon the
allotment and issue of 345,000,000 new shares
and 30,000,000 new convertible preferred shares
on 6 November 2015, EDS Wellness has ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Company and the
Group’s investment in EDS Wellness has been
accounted for as available-for-sale financial
assets.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2015, the Guangzhou Property with a
carrying amount of HK$595,448,000 has been pledged
to secure the mortgage loan granted to the Group.

Material commitments

At 31 December 2015, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$52,329,000 relating to the capital
expenditures for the Subject Land which were
contracted but not provided for.

Exchange risk and hedging

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Euro and Renminbi. The Group
is exposed to exchange risk with respect mainly to
Renminbi and Euro which may affect its performance.
The directors closely monitor statement of financial
position and cashflow exchange risk exposures
and where considered appropriate use financial
instruments, such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate agreements,
to hedge this exchange risk. During the year, no
financial instruments for hedging purposes were used
by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2015, the Group had the following
material contingent liabilities:

(a)

On 15 April 2010, a claim was brought by China
Finance & Assets Management Limited (“China
Finance”) in High Court Action No. 526 of 2010
against Rexdale Investment Limited (“Rexdale”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
for failing to pay a service fee in the sum of
HK$25,000,000 to China Finance. No provision
for the claim was made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 as Lafe Corporation
Limited, the beneficial owner of Rexdale prior
to the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Rexdale by One Synergy Limited (“One
Synergy”) in December 2010, has undertaken
to indemnify and keep indemnified the Group
against any and all losses, claims, damages,
penalties, actions, demands, proceeding,
judgment and costs arising from or in connection
with the claim.

On 20 March 2014, the Company announced that
it came to its attention that a writ of summons
in High Court Action No. 9 of 2014 was issued
by The Grande Holdings Limited (in liquidation),
Roderick John Sutton (as joint and several
provisional liquidator of The Grande Holdings
Limited), Fok Hei Yu (as joint and several
provisional liquidator of The Grande Holdings
Limited) and 65 other companies listed as
plaintiffs against 25 defendants inclusive of One
Synergy, a company acquired by the Group in
December 2011. One Synergy has, as at the date
of this annual report, not been served with the
writ.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One Synergy
is liable to the plaintiffs as a constructive trustee
and/or by way of equitable compensation and/
or an accounts of profits and/or restitution and/
or damages as a knowing recipient and/or by
reason of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of fiduciary
duties by various of the defendants and/or by
reason of dealings between One Synergy and the
plaintiffs otherwise being voidable (and avoided),
void, unlawful or illegal, in respect of its receipt
of the shares in The Grande Properties Ltd. (now
known as Rexdale).
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THERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities (Continued)

Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Adelio Holdings Limited, which is the
holding company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rexdale from Lafe
Corporation Limited, being one of the defendants,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 31 December 2010 (the “Agreement”).
The entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being one
of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited to Lafe
Corporation Limited on or about 29 June 2007.
The principal assets of Rexdale were the whole
of the 1st floor and the flat roof, the whole
of 6th to 12th floors, roof, external walls, two
lavatories, three lorry parking spaces and eight
private car parking spaces on the ground floor
of an industrial building located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total gross floor of
approximately 139,412 square feet exclusive of
lavatories, lorry and private car parking spaces,
flat roof and roof (collectively, the “Kwun Tong
Properties”). The Kwun Tong Properties was
sold by Rexdale to Grand Reward Limited, an
independent third party, in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the writ and has been advised to defend the
plaintiffs’ claim in the said action. Counsel has
advised that, based upon available evidence,
there is nothing unusual in the Agreement and
One Synergy would not have any express or
constructive notice of the plaintiffs’ alleged
irregularities and/or fraudulent acts of the former
directors and/or management officers of the
plaintiffs and One Synergy should not be held
liable to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has
good and valid defence thereto.

On 1 April 2015, the Contractor commenced a
lawsuit against Guangzhou Yingrui Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BN WA EiEMRZEE
FR & 8, “Yingrui”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, at the People’s Court of
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City with respect to
certain outstanding payment of approximately
RMB11,427,000 (not including accrued interest)
(equivalent to HK$13,644,000) under the

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent liabilities (Continued)

construction contract between Yingrui and the
Contractor for the construction of the Guangzhou
Property. The disputed amount of the lawsuit
includes working progress fee of RMB1,420,000
(equivalent to HK$1,696,000), performance bond
of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,194,000)
and construction fee of approximately
RMB9,007,000 (equivalent to HK$10,754,000).
On 7 April 2015, the People’s Court of Yuexiu
District, Guangzhou City upon application of the
Contractor, issued a seizure order on certain
units within the Guangzhou Property to protect
the interest of the Contractor to the extent of
approximately RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$17,910,000) in value. The lawsuit is now
pending further review by the People’s Court of
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City.

No provision for the lawsuit was made in
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
as Best Volume has secured an unconditional
undertaking from Ace Guide Holdings Limited,
the ultimate beneficial owner of Yingrui prior to
the acquisition by Best Volume in October 2014,
under which Ace Guide Holdings Limited has
agreed to pay to Best Volume or its assignee by
way of damages an amount equal to any and all
losses incurred by Yingrui and/or Best Volume
resulting from, arising out of or in relation to
the lawsuit, including without limitation payment
under final effective judgment or settlement, and
all other costs and expenses incurred in relation
to the lawsuit.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2015, the headcount of the Group
was 32 (2014: 21). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$59,559,000 (2014:
HK$30,344,000). The increase in staff costs
was mainly attributable to (i) the increase of
HK$14,403,000 in discretionary bonuses paid to the
directors and staff, (ii) the increase of HK$8,587,000 in
equity-settled share-based payment expenses arising
from the grant of share options to the directors and
employees of the Group and (iii) the full year effect
of the Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business as it commenced operations in October
2014. In addition to basic salaries, contributions to
retirement benefits scheme and discretionary bonus,
staff benefits include medical scheme and share
options.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Key performance indicators

The Company has defined the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are closely
aligned with the performance of the Group.

and Analysis

Bt %5 B B8 (47)
FERBRER

ARBECHETIHEARERREE —H2E
EXRVER(ETERRER]D -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-BL%FE

Notes 2015 2014
Kzt “E-RF —E-MF
Revenue e 1 HK$184,780,000 HK$88,671,000
184,780,000 & 7t 88,671,00038 T
Profit for the year attributable to NGIE 2PN 2
owners of the Company REERF HK$105,256,000 HK$238,077,000
105,256,000 /& T 238,077,0008 T
Equity attributable to owners of the .\ WNEIE 2PN
Company Ex HK$3,352,310,000 HK$2,144,651,000
3,352,310,000/8 T 2,144,651,0008 T
Return on financial assets at fair value AP EFABRERZ
through profit or loss SREEZER 2 (5.99)% 3.79%
Return on loans receivables W &Rz 3 8.80% 8.69%
Return on capital employed in design ~ RiTREEKRBEERNA
and sale of jewelry products ERZEH 4 36.17% 3.14%

Return on investment properties REMEZER 5 0.46% Nil &

Notes: Bt

1. The figure for 2014 is restated to exclude the impact of 1. ZE-—NEZHENEYNUIKREKRIELEER
discontinued operations. a7 )

2. Return on financial assets at fair value through profit or 2. REBAVFEFABRRZERMEEZRREELAF
loss includes gains and losses arising on change in fair BEEHEECWEREE HEBTEZWERE
value, gains and losses on disposal and dividend income. BURBREWA - ENFERRAFEFAEBR
It is measured as a percentage against opening fair value RetREEZHIAFERERATHE 2EER
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and EzaDtk e
total investments made at cost.

3. Return on loans receivables includes interest income 3. REWRERZEREEFEMEWARCER ZHER
and impairment loss recognised. It is measured as a B HNFAERTHERER(TEEERES
percentage against average loans receivables (excluding FE)ZzBDLE °
accrued interest receivables).

4.  Return on capital employed in design and sale of jewelry 4. R RFEURBEMMAELRZBRIERFTRE
products represents segment profit or loss from design EREEMER 2 RN EEBRAF A
and sale of jewelry products business divided by average EX WEERBEDL -
capital employed and is measured as a percentage.

5.  Return on investment properties includes gains and losses 5. REVECEBREFBELAFEEBEEZWEZRE

arising on change in fair value, rental income and gains
and losses on disposal less amortisation of intangible
assets in respect of the Club, depreciation expense of
property, plant and equipment of the Club and operating
lease rentals in respect of the Club. It is measured as
a percentage against opening fair value of investment
properties, opening carrying amounts of intangible assets
in respect of the Club and opening carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the Club.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)

Commentary on the performance of the Group against
each of these KPIs is set out above and Operations
Review below.

These KPls are reviewed regularly and amended
occasionally to correspond with the changing mix of
the Group’s principal activities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year, no revenue was generated from the
Group’s film distribution business as the Group was
not able to secure quality films at reasonable prices
for distribution.

During the year, the Group acquired Hong Kong
equities with market value of HK$692,505,000. The
Group’s sale of financial assets business recorded a
loss on revenue of HK$14,175,000, which represents
a loss of HK$10,295,000 on disposal of Hong Kong
equities and a loss of HK$3,880,000 on disposal
of 1,723,854,545 shares in China Star pursuant to
the 12-month mandate granted to the directors by
the shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 18 December 2014. At 31 December
2015, the Group remeasured its equity portfolio at
market prices and recorded a loss of HK$66,286,000
arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss due to the poor
market sentiment sparked by concerns over Mainland
China’s slowing economy. Return on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2015 is (5.99)% (2014: 3.79%). The
negative return for the year was mainly due to the
increase in loss on sale of financial assets from
HK$3,918,000 to HK$14,175,000 and the recognition
of a loss of HK$66,286,000 arising on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, whereas a gain of HK$27,483,000 was
recognised in the previous year.

On 28 June 2013, the shareholders granted a
12-month mandate to the directors for disposing of
the shares in China Star held by the Group. The Group
disposed of 2,369,934,650 shares in China Star under
the 12-month mandate granted on 28 June 2013. Such
12-month mandate was expired on 27 June 2014. On
7 November 2014, the directors proposed to seek an
approval from the shareholders for granting another
12-month mandate to the directors for disposing of
the remaining 1,723,854,545 shares in China Star
held by the Group. The 12-month disposal mandate

TEERWE S

Bt %5 B B8 (47)
FERRERE)

BAEERRBEETERBEZZIRIANRL
NXRETX 2 EFORE -

ZEEIRRBIEEREHW I AEER]
BEAEETHEBH o TEXKAES -

E 3 )
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FRERT BAREZEXRTEBLEE
s o

FR AEEE AHEAG692,505000% T
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E73814,175,0008 T EH HEBRE B
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EFZ12EBEEELEPEE,723,854,545
BB E518 3,880,000/ 8B T RZE—HEF
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rﬂéé’&%ﬁ """" + B E 4 2 E718 66,286,000 78
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

for disposing of the remaining 1,723,854,545 shares
in China Star constitutes a major transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and was approved
by the shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company on 18 December 2014. In April 2015, the
Group disposed of 1,723,854,545 shares in China Star
at an average selling price of approximately HK$0.133
per share on open market and recognised a loss of
HK$3,880,000 in its sale of financial assets business.

On 5 December 2014, the directors proposed to
seek an approval from the shareholders for granting
the 12-month mandate to the directors for disposing
of up to 146,640,000 shares in Lajin Entertainment
held by the Group. The 12-month disposal mandate
for disposing of up to 146,640,000 shares in Lajin
Entertainment constitutes a major transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and was approved
by the shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company on 13 January 2015. Prior to the grant of
the 12-month disposal mandate, the Group disposed
of 75,800,000 shares in Lajin Entertainment in a series
of transactions on open market on 19 December
2014. In April 2015, the Group disposed of the
remaining 70,840,000 shares in Lajin Entertainment
at an average selling price of approximately HK$1.41
per share on open market. As a result, the Group
recognised a cumulative gain reclassified from equity
to profit or loss upon derecognition of available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$74,378,000.

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans of HK$72,529,000,
a 7.39% decrease from HK$78,316,000 for the
previous year. This decrease was attributable to
(i) certain customers early repaid their outstanding
loans prior to maturity and (i) certain internal cash
resources of the Group was utilised to finance the
acquisitions of the entire issued share capital in
and the shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title and
the entire issued share capital of Best Volume.
The average monthly balance of loans receivables
decreased from HK$901,065,000 in the year ended
31 December 2014 to HK$824,071,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2015. During the year, the Group
granted new loans in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$953,456,000 to its customers and received
prepayment and repayment of HK$1,414,000,000 from
its customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the directors assessed the collectability of loans
receivables. As there was no objective evidence that
the Group would not be able to collect all amounts
due, no impairment loss on loans receivables was

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

recognised. At 31 December 2015, the Group’s
loans receivables together with accrued interest
receivables amounted to HK$485,477,000 (2014:
HK$950,549,000). Return on loans receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is 8.80%, which is
fairly constant with 8.69% in the previous year.

During the year, the Group’s design and sale of
jewelry products business generated revenue
of HK$117,327,000, a 722.02% increase from
HK$14,273,000 for the previous year, and a segment
profit of HK$14,838,000, a 2,189.81% increase from
HK$648,000 for the previous year. The increase in
revenue and segment profit was mainly attributable
to (i) the full year effect of the Group’s design and
sale of jewelry products business as it commenced
operations in October 2014 and (ii) the increased sale
and marketing efforts in direct selling the Group’s
jewelry products to Europe, the Middle East and the
US. During the year, the Group has strengthened its
direct export selling and product design capabilities
by recruiting a number of experienced sales
executives and a designer. At 31 December 2015,
the Group’s inventories of jewelry products, including
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods,
amounted to HK$41,412,000 (2014: HK$25,177,000)
and the Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business had undelivered sale orders amounted to
HK$1,500,000 (2014: HK$800,000). Return on capital
employed in design and sale of jewelry products for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is 36.17% (2014:
3.14%). This increase was mainly due to the strong
performance of the Group’s design and sale of jewelry
products business in the year ended 31 December
2015.

To expand its property investment business into
Mainland China, the Company as purchaser entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with Unique Talent Group Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Jiuhao Health, as vendor and Jiuhao
Health as guarantor relating to the proposed
acquisition of the entire issued shares in and
the shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title at a
consideration of HK$1,650,000,000 on 11 December
2014. Smart Title and its subsidiaries have two major
assets, which are (i) the rights to manage and operate
the Club up to 31 December 2051 and (ii) the rights to
develop and operate the Subject Land and the rights
to manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land up to 30 January 2062. Both the Club and the
Subject Land are located in Beijing. The Subject Land
is being developed into a low-density deluxe hotel
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

villas community and a high-end hotel apartment
complex. The acquisition was completed on 6 October
2015. The Group holds the Club and the Subject
Land as long-term investments for rental purposes.
Upon completion of the acquisition, a goodwill on
acquisition of HK$347,567,000 representing the
excess of the fair value of the consideration paid over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed by the Group at 6 October 2015
and the intangible assets of HK$996,009,000 relating
to (i) the rights to manage and operate the Club and
(ii) the rights to develop and operate the Subject Land
and the rights to manage the properties erected on
the Subject Land were recognised. At the end of the
reporting period, the directors performed impairment
tests in respect of the goodwill and the intangible
assets arising from the acquisition with reference to
the valuation reports prepared by the independent
valuer and determined to recognise an impairment
loss in respect of goodwill of HK$48,492,000.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the assets of the
Club have been leased to BONEBEEEEER A AL
RH2AA (Haikou No. 9 Hotel Management Company
Limited, Beijing Branch, “BJ Haikou No. 9 Co”), a
branch of an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
Jiuhao Health for an initial term of 20 years, which
may be further extended up to 31 December 2051 if
BJ Haikou No. 9 Co requests so within a six-month
period before the expiry of the initial 20 year-term.
There are four rental periods of five years each during
the initial term of 20 years (and three additional rental
periods of five years each if the lease is extended
to 31 December 2051). If BJ Haikou No. 9 Co would
like to terminate the lease agreement, BJ Haikou
No. 9 Co must give notice to the Group at least
six months prior to the expiry of the then five-year
rental period. BJ Haikou No. 9 Co cannot terminate
the lease agreement during the first five-year rental
period. The aggregate rent for the first five years is
RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to HK$108,000,000) which
has been paid by BJ Haikou No. 9 Co to the Group
prior to the commencement of the first five-year rental
period. The rental payment shall increase by 30% in
each of the subsequent five-year rental period and
shall be payable by BJ Haikou No. 9 Co to the Group
in one lump sum prior to the commencement of the
relevant five-year rental period. During the period from
6 October 2015 to 31 December 2015, the assets of
the Club generated rental income of HK$5,456,000 to
the Group.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

RIECIRE (/)

FHARAER - FEESGAR EBIRE
ERIKRE  ARWEES WEEETK
% WEBEECEE A 347,567,00058 5T » B
EAREZATFEBEARER -Z—H2F+
BARAEBKRBAEINEERMIRIEEEFEZ
S BRH()EERCEGFZERN ;) &)
HERCETEMRNEEZIBRE FEEYE
IR 2 B EE S 996,009,000 7T o RA
WMEHKR  BEESZB I AEMFER 2 EER
EHNBEEEACHERBREEETRE
B BEERIAEERERIEA 48,492,000
BIT ©

WREETRE  EMcEECHBETORRE
BEeBE2EMNB AR Z 2REBANERE
EEEERARILASAR(TEFEOIEL
A NSHEHAE=-+F > HELFTEOE
AARZTENSHERERIA~ELRE
HER AJE—SEHE-_ZTHR—F+=A
=+—-H - Z+EUNSHEH, BTE
BARIF(HMEERE-ZEH1—F+=A
=+—H BIEER=RAS SRAHH
F) o Mt TEOIEARABRAKRLEERS
HFEOIRNATNERER 2 AERBERAT
NMEBRNBHAER - bt FEOILEQATRE
RE—EREFHPHEKEHAESEY - F—1E
EFEZHESEEES AR 90,000,000 T (HEE
7 108,000,0008t) » EHALFTEFOIEA
ANE—ERFHEPBERII SN FTAER - &
BEESOFEHPcHSIRARLREI0%  BAH
B0 AT NEE 2 A FHEBEBA —
TSI AHFAER - BZE—AF+ARBE
—E-RE+ZRA=1+—RHEB EHEES
AEBEE2HESWAES5,456,00078 7T °



Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

The development of the Subject Land is divided
into three phases, in which the first phase involves
erecting nine hotel villas with a total gross floor area
of 21,661 square meters, the second phase involves
erecting 29 hotel villas with a total gross floor
area of 33,000 square meters and the third phase
is a development of a five-storey high-end hotel
apartment complex with restaurants, multi-function
room facilities and approximately 100 hotel apartment
units with a total gross floor area of 25,000 square
meters. The development of the first phase has been
commenced and is expected to be completed in the
third quarter of 2016. Following the completion of
the acquisition of Smart Title in October 2015, the
directors have revised the development plan of the
Subject Land in light of the Group’s future cashflow.
The developments of the second and third phases
are expected to be commenced in the fourth quarter
of 2016 and the second quarter of 2017 respectively.
Taking into account the development costs for the
first phase development paid by Jiuhao Health prior to
the completion of the acquisition, the total budgeted
development costs to be incurred by the Group for
the Subject Land is RMB921,390,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,100,140,000). It is currently expected that the
total budgeted development costs of the Subject Land
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources
and the rental income generated from the assets of
the Club and the Subject Land. As the entire Subject
Land is still at a development stage, no rental income
has yet been generated.

To further expand its property investment business
in Mainland China, the Group as purchaser entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with
Sino Credit as vendor relating to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Best Volume at a
consideration of HK$400,000,000 on 7 September
2015. The principal asset of Best Volume and
its subsidiaries is the Guangzhou Property. The
acquisition was completed on 12 November
2015. The Group holds the Guangzhou Property
as an investment property to earn rental income
and for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the acquisition, a goodwill on acquisition of
HK$62,899,000, which represents the excess of
the fair value of the consideration paid over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed by the Group at 12 November
2015. At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed an impairment test in respect of the
goodwill on acquisition with reference to a valuation
report prepared by another independent valuer and
determined that no impairment was required.
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At 31 December 2015, a total gross floor area of
5,085.77 square meters of the Guangzhou Property
has been leased to tenants who are third parties
independent of the Group. Basement Levels 2 and
3 of the Guangzhou Property with a total gross floor
area of 1,709.77 square meters have been vacant.
During the period from 12 November 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Guangzhou Property generated
rental income of HK$3,643,000 to the Group.

Return on investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2015 is 0.46% (2014: Nil). There is no
return on investment properties in the year ended 31
December 2014 as the Group expanded its property
investment business into Mainland China in the fourth
quarter of 2015.

With a view to improve profitability, EDS Wellness
as issuer entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with Xing Hang Limited, Goldenland
Mining & Investment Limited, Silver Empire Holding
Limited, Truly Elite Limited, High Aim Global Limited
and First Bonus International Limited as subscribers
relating to the proposed subscription of 345,000,000
new shares in EDS Wellness and 30,000,000 new
convertible preferred shares of EDS Wellness on 17
February 2015. The directors believe that the entering
into of the conditional subscription agreement
represents a good opportunity for EDS Wellness to
(i) raise a substantial amount of additional funds for
future business development in in-flight WLAN and
WIFI engineering and services business in Mainland
China which is in a segment difference from the
existing business of EDS Wellness, (ii) improve its
financial position and liquidity and (iii) leverage
on the expertise and business network of Mr. Cai
Zhaoyang, who is the major shareholder and the sole
director of Xing Hang Limited (the major subscriber),
to take advantage of the expected strong growth
in the avionic engineering and service sector in
Mainland China. Upon completion of the subscription,
the Group was deemed to dispose of a 57.67%
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness and has lost its
control over EDS Wellness. As a result, EDS Wellness
has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and
the Group’s investment in EDS Wellness has been
accounted for as available-for-sale financial assets.
The Group recognised a gain of HK$245,072,000 on
deemed disposal of a subsidiary. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group remeasured its investment
in 52,500,000 shares in EDS Wellness at market
price and recognised an impairment loss in respect
of available-for-sale financial assets reclassified from
equity to profit or loss of HK$73,500,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

RIECIRE (/)

R-ZE-HF+=ZB=+—H BMNYXEEH
HFHEFP(BURAEBZE=F)2BEER
BEAS5085.77TEAK  BMNYEZHE_-R
CR(BEEEEBEARA1,709.77TFHK)EE -
BEZZE—hAF+—A+ZHEZZ—-H&F+=
B=+—HHHE BMNYEALREEELERS
g A 3,643,000 5T ©

BEZZ-AF+-A=+t-BLFEZRE
MEZEHRB0.46% (ZF—MF : &) - A
RAEER-Z-HAFENFTERTERL
MBNERERXY  BE-_T-—NF+=A
St—HLEFESEREYEZLIH -

ABRFEFEESH » EDS Wellness (fEH 31T
A)EEEATABR AT ~ Goldenland Mining &
Investment Limited » Silver Empire Holding
Limited » Truly Elite Limited » High Aim
Global Limited & First Bonus International
Limted ERRBAIR=-Z-—HF = A
TERATVEKRGRABHE ATEHRER
. #8345,000,000 B EDS Wellness ¥7 i&
% 30,000,000 ) EDS Wellness ¥7 o] i I% {8
R EERRITLBRERBHERBEDS
Wellness iR RBU () BEEREHES - #
BE&RPERME—EEEDS WellnessIRE

TRERKEES  (\NETERIARESER
FHERG)EAEMBERATZEERREME
—BERINEELE(EERBAZESRE
EREE UHRBEHPEAEMEEFIREHE
REEKEcENERIPEFT RESEEK
% KEBHEEAEHBEENEDS Wellness 2
57.67% I IRAEZ I Kk EHEDS Wellness 2
& FE o H Itk » EDS Wellness FTEAARER
ZHBATIRAEBNEDS Wellness 218 &
EEAFHEESHEEAR - AEBEERR
fEH & — BB A8 2 W 245,072,000 78
o RIBEHR  AEBEMEEHNTEER
EDS Wellness 2 52,500,000 R0 21k & -
VHERATHHESCHEEHEZEN 7 BER
HRZIBEEE 73,500,000 5T °



Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 6 November
2015 (the date on which the control over EDS
Wellness was lost), the EDS Wellness Group incurred
a loss of HK$22,988,000 to the Group. The results
of the EDS Wellness Group are presented separately
as discontinued operations for financial reporting
purpose. The performance of EDS Wellness Group
remained at a loss situation in the year ended 31
December 2015, which was mainly attributable to
the increase in administrative expenses resulted
from (i) the development of the provision of in-flight
WLAN and WIFI engineering and services business
in Mainland China and (ii) the legal and professional
fees incurred for the subscription of 345,000,000
new shares in EDS Wellness and 30,000,000 new
convertible preferred shares of EDS Wellness to
the six subscribers and the legal actions taken for
recovering an amount due from Mr. Shum Yeung.

The directors consider that the Group as a
shareholder holding investment in EDS Wellness will
continue to benefit from the increase in market price
of shares of EDS Wellness driven by the improvement
of EDS Wellness’ profitability. For the purpose of
realising the Group’s investment in EDS Wellness
in an effective and efficient manner, the directors
proposed to seek an approval from the shareholders
for granting a 12-month mandate for disposing of up
to 52,500,000 shares in EDS Wellness on 8 January
2016. The 12-month disposal mandate constitutes
a very substantial disposal of the Company under
the Listing Rules and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at a special general meeting of the
Company. The circular for approving the disposal
mandate is being prepared by the Company and
will be despatched to the shareholders as soon as
practicable.

The Spark Concept Group is operating two Japanese
noodle shops in Central and Quarry Bay, and a
high-end Japanese restaurant in Central. During the
year, the Spark Concept Group reported a loss of
HK$2,728,000, a 196.52% increase from HK$920,000
for the previous year. As the Group’s share of post-
acquisition losses equals to its interests in Spark
Concept, no further share of losses was recognised
for the year. The increase in loss was mainly
attributable to (i) the deterioration of operations of
the Japanese noodle shop in Hunghom caused by
the nearby construction works of Shatin to Central
Link and (ii) the pre-operation expenses incurred by
the high-end Japanese restaurant in Central. Given
that there is a prolonged delay in completing the
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

construction works of Shatin to Central Link, the
Japanese noodle shop in Hunghom was closed in
February 2016 in order to reduce the operating cash
outflow of the Spark Concept Group. To finance its
operations, the major shareholder has advanced
HK$2,000,000 to the Spark Concept Group. No further
cash was advanced to the Spark Concept Group by
the Group during the year. In light of the deteriorating
results of the Spark Concept Group in the year
ended 31 December 2015, an impairment loss of
HK$1,431,000 was recognised against the amount due
from the Spark Concept Group. At 31 December 2015,
the Spark Concept Group owed the Group an amount
of HK$7,393,000 (before accumulated impairment
of HK$5,296,000), which is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. In view of the fact
that Hong Kong people love Japanese food, the Spark
Concept Group has opened the high-end Japanese
restaurant in Central in October 2015 in order to
expand its operations. As announced by the Michelin
Guide in November 2015, the Japanese noodle shops
in Central and Quarry Bay are again included in the
Bib Gourmands in the Michelin Guide Hong Kong
Macau 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Sparked by the newly created circuit breaker system
in Mainland China A-share markets and Renminbi
hitting fresh lows, investors witnessed turmoil across
major equity markets in January 2016. Equity markets
were further impacted by worries over slumping
oil prices and slowing growth in Mainland China.
Investors face a number of uncertainty in 2016,
which are the extent of Mainland China’s slowdown,
weaker oil prices and falling inflation expectation. It
is evidenced by the Federal Reserve’s recent decision
in scaling back the number of times it expects to
raise interest rates in 2016. However, the directors
recognise that an uncertain outlook can often coincide
with a good opportunity to invest. As such, the
directors will cautiously monitor Hong Kong equity
market, change the Group’s equity portfolio mix from
time to time and realise the equities held by the Group
into cash as and when appropriate. The Group will
continue to adopt a conservative investment approach
towards its sale of financial assets business in 2016.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

Following the active expansion in recent years, the
Group’s money lending business slowed down its
pace in the year ended 31 December 2015 as certain
internal cash resources of the Group were utilised to
finance the acquisitions of the Club, the Subject Land
and the Guangzhou Property. As some of the internal
cash resources of the Group are allocated to finance
the development of the Subject Land, the Group has
recently raised funds from the placing of new shares
under general mandate as completed in February
2016. The directors believe the Group has sufficient
funds to maintain the current level of operations of its
money lending business. Given that concerns about
the outlook of Hong Kong’s economy are growing, the
Group adopts a more cautious approach during its
assessment and approval of loans in order to mitigate
its credit risk. Accordingly, the directors expect a
decline in the Group’s money lending business in
2016.

The Hong Kong property market is hampered by the
weakening market sentiment. Various factors including
higher interest rates in the US, political disputes in
Hong Kong, slowing economy in Mainland China
and growing housing supply in Hong Kong affect
homeowners’ confidence causing the prices for certain
property transactions significantly lower than market
prices in the first quarter of 2016. Despite recent signs
of a fall in property prices, Chief Executive Leung
Chun-ying said the property cooling measures will
stay. As the market has growing concerns about the
outlook of Hong Kong’s economy, in which tourism
and re-exports show signs of weakness, the directors
predict that property prices would slide 10% to 15%
in 2016. As such, the Group has adopted a wait-
and-see approach towards its property investment
business in Hong Kong.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Group has
successfully expanded its property investment
business into Mainland China by acquiring the Club,
the Subject Land and the Guangzhou Property. Such
expansion is for the purpose of creating a stable
income stream to the Group. Both the Club and the
Guangzhou Property are generating an ongoing rental
income to the Group. With approximately 75% of the
gross floor area of the Guangzhou Property has been
leased to the tenants, the directors are considering
various plans to seek tenants for Basement Levels
2 and 3 of the Guangzhou Property in order to
increase its occupancy rate. No rental income was
generated from the Subject Land during the year
due to the Subject Land being developed into a low-
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

density deluxe hotel villas community and a high-
end hotel apartment complex. As it is expected that
the first phase development of the Subject Land will
be completed in the third quarter of 2016, marketing
activities will be carried out in the second quarter
of 2016 to secure leases for the nine hotel villas.
Accordingly, the directors expect that the rental
income of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2016 will increase moderately.

The Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business has grown significantly in 2015 as the Group
has increased its sale and marketing efforts in direct
selling its jewelry products to Europe, the Middle
East and the US. Consumer spending in the countries
where the Group’s ultimate customers located
rebounded at a modest pace in 2015. The economy
of these countries has been gradually recovered
and supported by domestic demand, aided by the
improvement in labour market, drop in oil prices and
low inflation which gives consumers more disposable
income to spend. To stay competitive, the Group is in
the process of setting up a wholly owned subsidiary
in Dubai for reducing import tax on selling its jewelry
products to Europe and the Middle East. The directors
anticipate the Group’s design and sale of jewelry
products business will show a moderate growth in the
year ending 31 December 2016.

In 2016, the directors will continue to cautiously
monitor the business environment and strengthen the
Group’s business foundation by focusing the Group’s
existing businesses. In addition, the directors will
continue to cautiously identify suitable investment
opportunities for the Group to diversify its businesses
and broaden its revenue.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2015 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group had the following
material events:

(@) On 8 January 2016 and 11 January 2016, the
directors proposed to obtain a 12-month mandate
from the shareholders for a possible disposal
of up to 52,500,000 shares in EDS Wellness
held by the Group on open market transactions
on the Stock Exchange. The disposal mandate
constitutes a very substantial disposal to the
Company under the Listing Rules and is subject
to approval by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b) On 18 February 2016, the Company allotted
and issued 536,000,000 new shares at an issue
price of HK$0.125 per share by way of placing
of new shares under general mandate raising
HK$64,490,000 (net of expenses) for financing
the Group’s design and sale of jewelry products
business and money lending business.

(c) Impacted by worries over slumping oil prices
and slowing growth in Mainland China, the
fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and the available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Group decreased
from HK$860,330,000 at 31 December 2015 to
HK$750,858,000 at the date of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties
which may impact the Group’s financial conditions,
results of operations or future performance and how
the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete
and comprehensive statement of all potential risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group, but rather those
risks which the Group currently believes may have a
significant impact on the Group’s performance and
future prospects.
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Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

FEmE AE AR

Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that medium Extensive investment management
RBE R b and long-term profitability and/or experience of the Board.

reputation of the Group could be
adversely impacted by the failure
either to identify or implement
the correct strategy, or to react
appropriately to changes in the
business environment.
SR M L B 2% R SR BE A 5 = BB e L TR SR G
RHEXRREFEREEREMEARE
EHHRRBABAEIRRBBERT
Nz -

Economic risk Economic risk is the risk of any
£7 [EL Bs downturn in economic conditions

could impact the Group’s performance
through higher bad debts as a result
of customers’ inability to repay loans
and lower asset values.
RERBABREREZTTEAR B3
BEFENMBEEENMESUERENRE
EBEREZELAEERRE -

ESENREEECLEELR -

Regularly review on strategy and
performance of each business unit.
EHMRN S EREN 2 RBERKRE o
Perform comprehensive due diligence on
all potential acquisitions.

AR EERRSRETEASHES -

Regularly review forward looking
indicators to identify economic conditions.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

FTERRBRAARERE)

(Continued)
Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
FEmEE AE TR
Credit risk Credit risk is the risk of financial e Fully understand customers and carry out
EERE loss to the Group if a customer credit quality assessment on customers
or counterparty to a financial before granting loans.
instrument fails to meet its contractual REHEFRANZEATHREFITHEFETE
obligations. BB R
HEMITECEFHRZEHFREIFFAR  Regularly monitor loans receivables and
BEETHENER  AXKEzBKER assess for their recoverability.
REEREERE - EREERWERRERE A BIWMY -
e Limit credit risk exposure by granting loan
to any single customer of not more than
8% of the consolidated total assets of the
Group.
ZROEIMNE-FEFRETZRAEERS
EERBESN cENRURFIEERE -
e Make rental contracts with tenants with an
appropriate credit history.
BBEAEEFEEEL 2 AMBARTLEL -
Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group e Regularly monitor liquidity and statement
RENE L EE will not be able to meet its financial of financial position.
obligations as they fall due. EHERRBES RPEMREK
RBESRMBANEBEREBITHEIE 2 ¢ Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
MEEEZRERE - commitments.
REBEERDE S LR ©
e Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing
only in securities listed on stock
exchanges.
ZRERENRSMLETESRERBDES
e
e Ensure acceptable and appropriate
finance in place, or believed to be
available before committing investment
projects.
EEREBRB ZAEREAEIHEATEZR
HEES -
Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in e Regularly monitor equity portfolio to
B equity prices will affect the Group’s address any portfolio issues promptly.
income and the value of its holdings of EHEIREREASUNKEREBEMKRE
equities. HEMRE -

BERERSETEREBRAREEFR
BEEZREZS 2R -
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UNCERTAINTIES

Description
AE

TEERWE S

FERBRAARERE)

Mitigating actions

FRER

Exchange risk
B 53 [ By

People risk

ABEMR

Legal and
regulatory risk
EEREERMR

Exchange risk is the risk that changes
in foreign exchange rates will affect
the Group’s income and the value of
its holdings of assets.
ERERABEEAEERAREMEE
EEEZIEEXSEH M -

People risk is the risk of loss of the
services of any directors, senior
management and other key personnel
which could have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s businesses.
AZEBRTRUEAEEEKERERT
MEBZREMEE SREBAERHM
BB E R R 2 RS o

Legal and regulatory risk is the risk
that a breach of laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations
or disputes, resulting in additional
costs being incurred, civil and/or
criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
ERREERMAERERRERAEH
AL WERFIE - ERBENIAE RSB
R/BMBHRAREBEBEZRMR °

Closely monitor statement of financial
position and cashflow exchange risk
exposures and where considered
appropriate use financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.
Y ER B MR KRR RE LR - I
EERARBANBERATERSR I A (MED
IMNEEHN ~ IMNEHRERERBRRGRE) P
BEE 50 LBy o

Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to attract
and retain the employees we need.
REAGFHIZRBRENFBURREE
EBRONSIRREFRTEZAT ©

Ensure that the staff of the Group has the
right working environment to enable them
to do the best job possible and maximise
their satisfaction at work.
BRASEZBEESBEZIFRBEUSHE
ERSEATURMFIERSIFEREERK
1t °

Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes.
EREARRE SR BRI BRAMAZE
REUNBRERE ZEE -

Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.
BRABSREREREMERZALSR -
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ENVIRONMENT

As the Group is principally engaged in distribution
of films, sub-licensing of film rights, sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, and
design and sale of jewelry products, the Group
requires limited natural resources to operate and
therefore has a relatively low environmental impact.
The Group’s direct environmental impact comes from
its office premises, air travel and fuel consumed by
owned motor vehicles. The Group continuously seeks
ways to minimise the Group’s environmental footprint
and improve our energy saving, as well as reducing
both emissions and waste.

RE

HRAEEEERSERHRIT EREFHIT
B HESRERE  WERE  BEEBUK
BRI REEREEmR  AREELERTF2RA
BERAR  HUBRBER 2HFERD - F&E
EeHEREFERBHEPLENE RS
RR R 2B 2R E - AEETES
R ERBAEB 2 £ R DR INGRETRE » L
KD BE i K BE#Y o

For the year ended
31 December 2015
CO, emissions in kg

BZ-Z—-51fF

+=A=+—8

LHFEEUAFEEZ

Source of greenhouse gas emissions BEREBHEBRIR —E{tmBkE

(Note)

(K1EE)

Electricity (office premises) SEHRDEYE) 52,356

Air travel SRy i 32,906

Fuel consumed by owned motor vehicles BE 2 REPTERE 2 h 1,062

Total HET 86,324
Note: Kzt -

The figures are excluded the impact of discontinued operations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its principal activities and the
risk of non-compliance with such laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations or disputes,
resulting in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational damage.

During the year, the Group has complied with (i)
Money Lenders Ordinance and Money Lenders
Regulations for its money lending business in Hong
Kong, and (ii) Urban and Rural Planning Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China for the development of
the Subject Land in Mainland China.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that sustainable business success
and growth depends on the excellent relationships
maintained with stakeholders, including employees,
customers and suppliers. The Group seeks to act
fairly, responsibly and transparently in its operations
and relationships with stakeholders.

Employees

The Group has a strong commitment to ensure
that all its staff is treated fairly and that the Group
provides equal opportunity both to existing employees
and in its recruitment process. Merit is the primary
basis for employment with the Group. All employees
and applicants for employment should be treated
and evaluated according to their job-related skills,
qualifications, abilities and aptitudes only.

The Group seeks to consider employees from
a wide range of backgrounds in its recruitment
processes, and the Group does not tolerate any
form of harassment or discrimination of employees
with regards to race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation or religion. Active harassment
and discrimination in the workplace in any form is
unacceptable. The Group regards any actions by an
employee that constitute harassment or discrimination
as serious misconduct.

The Group has developed and implemented a
competitive compensation structure which is key for
the Group to help attract, motivate and retain the best
talent. In addition to basic salaries, provident fund
and discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options. The Group continually
reviews its compensation structure to ensure it
remains attractive and competitive.

The training and development of the Group’s
employees is key to employee retention, and
ensuring that its employees continue to have the
skills and expertise that is core to the Group’s
sustainable business success and growth. Employees
are encouraged to attend courses, seminars and
workshops that are relevant to their jobs and the
Group reimburses for related expenses in full.
Employees of the Group also have the opportunity
to be mentored by the directors, building one-to-one
relationships to coach people through their careers.
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THERWE S

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(Continued)

Customers

The Group believes that customers are vitally
important to its sustainable business success and
growth. Employees of the Group have a paramount
duty to act with integrity, respect, diligence and
competence in their dealings with the Group’s
customers.

To preserve its customer relationships:

(a) the Group does not misrepresent its services or
products in any sales or promotional efforts;

(b) the Group communicates clearly so that
customers understand the terms of the business
relationships, including contracts, performance
criteria, schedules, prices and responsibilities;
and

(c) the Group protect its customers’ confidential
information pursuant to contracts with its
customers and all applicable privacy laws in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Suppliers

The Group views its suppliers as partners who make
an important contribution to the Group’s sustainable
business success and growth. Employees of the
Group are expected to be honest and fair in all
business interactions with suppliers, which include
contractors, consultants and other agents.

The choice of suppliers of goods and services must
be made based on the best value received by the
Group. In addition, the Group believes in doing
business with those suppliers who demonstrate high
standards of ethical behaviour. The Group will not
knowingly engage suppliers who operate in violation
of applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2015, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
standards on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and the training and continuous
professional development of directors. The Board
has also reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2015.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The directors also ensure that
the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as its auditors for the year ended 31
December 2015. The statement by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65 of the annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical information of the directors as at the
date of this report are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors on pages 61 to 63 of the annual
report.

Save and except for (a) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers and (b) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%,
25% and 25% respectively in the issued share capital
of Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
at all times met the requirements Rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

For a director to be considered independent, that
director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of directors, the Board follows the requirement set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2015. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent. No independent non-
executive director has served the Company for more
than nine years.

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

Executive directors: HTEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai IEEEE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIE K&
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy PRIEZE ST
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIEN R4
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHTES :
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RKEMZEE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEEREE
Note 1:

1: Relevant reading, video or audio

2: Courses, seminars or workshops

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Business and management

On 7 December 2015, the Chairman of the Board held
meeting with the independent non-executive directors,
without the presence of the executive directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Remuneration Committee held three meetings to
review and discuss the remuneration structure
and packages of each executive directors and the
discretionary bonus of executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

ERELIHRS

EEZE2#)
FHEES

FHESSHMEBUFHTESRECELE
RFREERE  UR—BHTESFTHESRE
MR - RO CEERFTMEESER -

FHEEESTREBHMARAESRSNERE
ABZE2BHFHBRRRBEMRLIERMNA
BRECRFHTHMEE AESSRHE
& THRERENESFHEMABBALRES
BEOREEAG 2HM - HFES S HERIBIT
EENEREEAEBZHMNGE  BEEYSE
A BRASEANRBERE  ODESSRHE

=3
B °

REBEEZZE-HAF+-_A=1t—HLEFER

FHEESERRFNRARBUANITES 2 H M
RBREE  UARMTESZEHERA  2F
7= Aau% W EEBEFHERMAEEL -

REEEE

REZESH-EBHTESFTHESRE - UK
MEBLFATESARSEERRBICEE
A THEAERREEZESEERE -

REZESTIREERNESTIIRE - AH
AR (BEXRE  ABRER)  NEEE
ESNFEANENZAESHESSREE

¢
R ©

E*W&éﬁﬁ@j
—hEFER

4



42

Corporate Governance Report
ERELHBS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in light of challenges and opportunities
facing the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company. In evaluating and
selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity,
skill and expertise, professional and educational
background, potential time commitment for the Board
and/or committee responsibilities, and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to
appoint the appropriate person among the candidates
nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall
be appointed by the Board in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Nomination Committee held two meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
It also has separate meeting with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year with the
absence of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the external auditors the
annual report for 2014, the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014, the interim report for 2015 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2015 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the reports on internal
control system of the Group and discussed with the
management and the external auditors the accounting
policies and practices which might affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 24 March 2016, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2016.

ERELIHRS

ExZEE#H)
BEREEE

ERZEER-EBYUFHTESEERE
£ FARSRERREICAEAR - EERESL
ERBREEEXR -

BEREEE T EERAERARNA MR
BiEF  URBRSARR ZPBER - AIE
EREAREERS  c EREES T EEIMER
B ZERERERR - BEREESSFEHS
HELMR > TEAEEBREZB/RT @ &
FRADNBZIIELHAEERD IR -

REBE-ZF—HF+-A=+—-HLEFEER
ERLZECSCHRERESSLIEGH A - &
SNEREBMERN T -—NEFHR A5EEZE
—E-NE+ A=+ HLEFEZLEZLR
EUHHRE T HFPHREREAEEE
EIE-AFAA=THLERERAZAREER
RGN KERER  ERZEETERLEER
AMERERR 2R EREEEE N IMNEZEE
RO EREERMEREEEZET]
KRER -

R-ZE-RE=ZA-+WBEETzEEL &
BEZESRAGEMHBREETTMEHAERA
AZZEER BEFREMME  BIMERES
MET 2R - BRZESRNLKNESSES
RIB-ARERRBFASLEHNZAEFHS
STENER A BR AR AARRD B Z INEZEE -

KB IR AR AT
—E_REER

43



44

Corporate Governance Report
ERELHBS

ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out as below:

ERHELE
REBZE-_Z-AF+-A=+—-HLFER
ZRESRADASESTRZHELERIIM
T

Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHRE/RERILE

Annual Special Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit Finance

general general Board  Committee ~ Committee = Committee ~ Committee

meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meeting

RRE#F R%H gze §MzRe R#ZRe BHZRE  MHZEe

K8 K8 g% g% g% g% L

Number of meetings RV 1 6 49 3 2 2 0

Executive directors: #iEs:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai iy 1h 5/6 48/49 3/3 22 NATER  NATER

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton ~ REIBEE 01 6/6 16/49  NATER NATER  NATER  NATER

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Rigzrs 1n 6/6 549 NATER  NATER  NATER 00

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEBLAE 1 5/ 46/49  NAFER NATER  NATER  NATER
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES:

directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi AL 1 6/6 42/49 3/3 22 22 NATER

Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 1/1 6/6 42/49 33 212 22 NIATEE

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERLE 11 6/6 149 NATER  NATER 202 00

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical information of Mr. Chan are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors on page 62 of the
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit
services and non-audit services and incurred audit
services fees of HK$680,000 and non-audit services
fees of HK$2,948,000. The non-audit services
consist of taxation services, interim review and
reporting accountant services in relation to notifiable
transactions and fund raising activity.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board should ensure that the Group maintains
a sound and effective internal control system to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The Group has adopted a set of internal
control procedures and policies to safeguard the
assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting
records and reliability of financial reporting, and
to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The internal control system is designed
to ensure the financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions are in place
and functioning effectively.

During the year, the Board engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Risk Advisory Services Limited to
conduct a review of the Group’s internal control
system and make recommendations to the Board
for improvement and strengthening of the internal
control system. Based on the results of the internal
control review, the Board and the Audit Committee
considered the Group’s internal control system
effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern which might affect the shareholders were
identified.

The Board also, reviews, at least annually, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3811, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower
168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s bye-laws
during the year. The Company’s bye-laws is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 51 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

In prior years, the Group also engaged in the
development, distribution and marketing of personal
care treatments, products and services. These
operations were discontinued in the current year
(see notes 15 and 47 to the consolidated financial
statements).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 34 of the annual
report. This review forms part of this directors’ report.

DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the Group’s financial position
at that date are set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on pages 66 to 69 of the annual
report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend and propose that the profit for the year be
retained.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 244 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties and property
interests of the Group are set out on page 152 of the
annual report.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group
at 31 December 2015 are set out in notes 43 and 38
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year,

(a)

the Company allotted and issued 42,330,000
new ordinary shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.69 per share pursuant to the exercise
of share options granted to a director, the
employees and external consultants of the Group;

the Company allotted and issued 590,003,243
new ordinary shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.70 per share by way of rights to the
qualifying shareholders of the Company on
the basis of one new ordinary share to every
one existing ordinary share held on 28 July
2015. The net proceeds from the rights issue of
HK$403,172,000 were used for settling part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the entire
issued shares in and the shareholder’s loan due
by Smart Title Limited; and

the Company allotted and issued 1,500,000,000
new ordinary shares at an issue price of HK$0.70
per share to the shareholders of China Jiuhao
Health Industry Corporation Limited (“diuhao
Health”) pursuant to the exercise of the share
entitlement note issued to Jiuhao Health in
satisfaction of part of the consideration for the
acquisition of the entire issued shares in and the
shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title Limited.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2015.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 31 December 2015 comprised the retained
profit of HK$441,460,000 (2014: HK$463,015,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this directors’ report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton and Mr. Ng Heung Yan will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors of subsidiary undertakings included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company
(other than those listed above) were Mr. Xie Zhao Bin,
Mr. Chen Guang Tian, Mr. Zhang Chang Sheng, Mr.
Hau Wai Man Raymond, Ms. Han Li Hui, Ms. Wong
Siu Yan and Mr. So Chun Kai.

Biographical information of the directors of the
Company are set out on pages 61 to 63 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in
force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy
throughout the year, which indemnifies against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may
be incurred by the directors in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of directors as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) are set out below:

(@) Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director, has been appointed as
an executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange under stock code: 938, on
26 June 2015;

(b) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive
director, has been appointed as an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited, on 26
June 2015;

(c) a discretionary bonus of HK$3,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, an executive director,
on 5 August 2015;

(d) Mr. Lei Hong Wai resigned as the chairman of
the board of directors and an executive director
of Huanxi Media Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 1003 and formerly known as 21
Holdings Limited, on 2 September 2015;

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(e)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Fan, an executive director,
resigned as an executive director of Huanxi
Media Group Limited on 2 September 2015;

a discretionary bonus of HK$8,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai on 19 November 2015;

a discretionary bonus of HK$8,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton on 19 November
2015;

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy resigned as the
chairman of the board of directors of SkyNet
Group Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
under stock code: 8176, a then 70.18% owned
subsidiary of the Company and formerly known
as EDS Wellness Holdings Limited, on 23
November 2015;

a discretionary bonus of HK$37,500 was paid to
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan on 31 December 2015;

the monthly salary of Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan has
been revised to HK$80,000 with effect from 1
January 2016;

the monthly salary of Mr. Lei Hong Wai has
been revised to HK$700,000 with effect from 1
February 2016;

the monthly salary of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
has been revised to HK$700,000 with effect from
1 February 2016;

the monthly salary of Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has
been revised to HK$150,000 with effect from 1
February 2016; and

Mr. Lei Hong Wai has been appointed as the
chairman of the board of directors of Man Sang
International Limited on 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2015, the interests of the directors
and the chief executive and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

EBFRABRKE - AERE

R-ZEBE-FE+=-RA=+—8 BEXQXTR
BRAERIEKAEIB2IEFE 2 ERMATSE
8 RIBARTRBIMRE LHRITAEZES
ETESRZNWELETRAEBRAN  XQATE
ENFETHAERBS CBHEBALRAARRAT
REBBEEIE KRG - HERMREEZDE
BZ2REZMT :

Ly
a. ARQFEREEOOIBRTZEER
Percentage of

the issued share
capital of the

Number of
issued ordinary

shares held Company
Name of director Note  Capacity BEZE BT EARDATE T
EE=nA Kz B ZEREHE BAEDE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 7.89%
TIRERE corporations
ZEEATZER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 7.89%
Elton corporations
REMESAE ZEF AT S
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 7.89%
RENE L4 corporations
ZEFI AT S
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Beneficial owner 6,319,500 0.24%
PRIEZE L4 BEREEA
Note: it
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as 1. Twin Success International Limited

to 50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and
as to 50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.
Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Silver Pacific Development
Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.
Twin Success International Limited beneficially owns
211,416,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
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EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERFETHAERRS - HEBERS
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING RESE 2R (E)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
Long positions (Continued) We(E
b. Share options b. ER#E
Number of Number of
share options underlying
Name of director Capacity held shares
=y 54 BFEZHERERE HERAEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 26,001,001 26,001,001
TIEESEE ERERA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton  Beneficial owner 26,000,000 26,000,000
REMESE EREBA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Beneficial owner 22,701,001 22,701,001

PRIEEESEE ERERA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors,
chief executive nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes
are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EFERE
SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BRREE)
The following table discloses movements in the TREBEARANRFRAZERESE :
Company’s share options during the year:
Outstanding
Outstanding Adjusted at 31
at 1 January for the December
Share 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed rights issue 2015
option R-ZE-1f during during during (Note) H=-E-1%F
type -A—-H the year the year the year HERELHE +ZA=+-H
BREER OESiL:d RERRH RERTHR RERKK (Hzt) e i1
Directors and chief executive
EERIEMHAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2007B 950 - - - 51 1,001
TRBEE 2015A - 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
950 26,000,000 - - 51 26,001,001
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2015A - 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
REBRLE
- 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 2007B 950 - - - 51 1,001
BEZELE 2014A 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000 - -
2014B 3,870,000 - (3,870,000 - - -
2015A - 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
2015B - 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
5,470,950 22,700,000 (3,870,000 (1,600,000 51 22,701,001
Total directors and chief
executive
BERFIETHARAH 5,471,900 74,700,000 (3,870,000) (1,600,000 102 74,702,002
Employees and consultants ~ 2007A 4,588 - - - 247 4,835
EERER 2007B 22,113 - - - 1,194 23,307
2014A 24,760,000 - - (24,760,000) - -
2014B 42,350,000 - (38,460,000) (4,100,060 210,060 -
2015B - 247,800,000 - - - 247,800,000
Total employees and consultants
EEREREET 67,136,701 247,800,000 (38,460,000) (28,860,060 211,501 247,828,142
Total
@it 72,608,601 322,500,000 (42,330,000) (30,460,060) 211,603 322,530,144
Note: Ba -
The exercise prices and number of outstanding share options HMRITEBREZTEEREBECHRR=-ZE—HEFN
are adjusted for the rights issue of the Company as completed AZ+HAARARMRKBTERMELFAE -

on 24 August 2015.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 25 November 2015, the date of
grant of the 2015A share options, was HK$0.237.

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 9 December 2015, the date of
grant of the 2015B share options, was HK$0.244.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which the
2014B share options were exercised was HK$1.090.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE
OPTIONS” above and in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company as purchaser
entered into the conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Unique Talent Group Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Jiuhao Health, as vendor and
Jiuhao Health as guarantor relating to the proposed
acquisition of the entire issued shares in and the
shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title Limited at a
consideration of HK$1,650,000,000 on 11 December
2014. Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, the consideration of HK$1,650,000,000
shall be settled as to (i) HK$600,000,000 by cash
and (ii) HK$1,050,000,000 by the issue of the share
entitlement note, which entitles the holder thereof
to call for the allotment and issue of 1,500,000,000
new ordinary shares of Company at an issue price of
HK$0.70 per share. On 6 October 2015, the proposed
acquisition was completed and the Company issued
the share entitlement note to Jiuhao Health. On the
same date, Jiuhao Health exercised the allotment
right to call on the Company to allot and issue
1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares of Company at an
issue price of HK$0.70 per share and the Company
allotted and issued the 1,500,000,000 new ordinary
shares to the shareholders of Jiuhao Health.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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EFEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no connected
transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
shows that the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

HEXS
FR - AKEAUEBERS -

BEEEYN

RERNTET U FEEEA L TREHEM
ERMBOEB 2ERRITHEL

I

o

FERR
REZZB-—AF+ZA=+—8 AR EREE
FRPERFIFE I IRFEZEBRRRETH

BR TIHRRECHREBADARACHITREAZ
FRREAEARAT -

wR
a. ARFEBREECEBITZEER

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary  share capital of

shares held the Company

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity BEZERT (ADEERS

BRERE i EL) EEREE BAB AL

Mr. Yuen Hoi Po 1 Held by controlled corporations 395,190,474 14.70%
REELE RERLE 2 ES

Smart Concept Enterprise Limited 1 Beneficial owner 372,416,803 13.90%

BEREEA
Twin Success International Limited 2 Beneficial owner 211,416,000 7.89%
ERBEEA

Silver Pacific International Limited 2and 3 Held by controlled corporation 211,416,000 7.89%
2R3 TRHAR 2 EE

Silver Pacific Development Limited 2and 4 Held by controlled corporation 211,416,000 7.89%
2K4 RERLE 2 ES

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2and 3 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 7.89%
FEERE 2R3 TRHAR 2 EE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2and 4 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 7.89%
REIMEAE 2K4 RERLE 2 ES

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 2and 4 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 7.89%
REIEEE 2R4 REFARER

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

56 Annual Report 2015



a.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) TERR(E)
Long positions (Continued) We(E)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company a. ARTEREECOIBTZEER(E)
(Continued)
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
shares held the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity BEZERT (ADEERf
REAE EL) EEREE BAE D
Asia Vest Partners VIl Limited Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
RERLB 2 S
Asia Vest Partners X Limited Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
SEHLEzES
Asia Vest Partners Limited Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%
RERLB 2 S
Mr. Andrew Nam Sherrill Held by controlled corporations 129,412,174 9.95%

BEREE

REH Nz B

Notes: Ktat -

1. Smart Concept Enterprise Limited is wholly owned 1.
by Mr. Yuen Hoi Po.

2. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 2.
50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.

3. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned 3.
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

4. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 4.
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50%
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

5. The number of issued ordinary shares held and 5.

the percentage of the issued share capital of the
Company are based on the Disclosure of Interests
Notices filed to the Company by the relevant
shareholders on 4 September 2007.

Smart Concept Enterprise Limited H&®

BREERERER -

Twin Success International Limited %
B Silver Pacific International Limited
# B 50% K Silver Pacific Development
Limited #H& 50% o

Silver Pacific International Limited FBZ
BEEEZEHES -

Silver Pacific Development Limited 7
AIRRBEELEEREE 50% RIREI B £
B50% °

HKECRTEBRROMERAQFTD#
TRAZBDE  DREBERRR=-ZF
ZLHENANBBEALTRRZMNERE

N

KEREBRERRAR
—E-REER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FTERRE)

Long positions (Continued) We(E)

b. Share options b. HERE

Number of share Number of

Name of shareholder Capacity options held underlying shares
IR A B 4 BEZBREZE HEROHE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 26,001,001 26,001,001
THERE EREEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton Beneficial owner 26,000,000 26,000,000

REIMREE BRBEEA

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2015.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan (each an executive director)
have an indirect interest in approximately 16.13% of
the issued share capital of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange under stock code: 938 engaging in
the development, sales and leasing of properties,
through their beneficial interests in Twin Success
International Limited.

In addition, Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton have been appointed as executive directors
of Man Sang International Limited on 26 June 2015.
Mr. Lei Hong Wai has been appointed as the chairman
of the board of directors of Man Sang International
Limited on 31 March 2016.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group
is set up by the directors of the Company on the
basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme is set out in note 49 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2015, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 11.48% (2014: 11.70%) and
39.38% (2014: 52.01%) of its revenue from sales of
goods or rendering of services respectively.

In 2015, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 16.09% (2014: 66.10%) and
59.85% (2014: 89.28%) of its purchases respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors of the Company
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any
charitable donations.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng

Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 47, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 14 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
an executive director of the Company during the
period from 28 September 2001 to 13 October
2005. He was a director of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies Limited, which promotes
interaction amongst its members which are listed
companies in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China, in 2002. He also holds directorships in the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director
of Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr.
Lei is currently the chairman of the board of directors
and an executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) under stock code: 938. Mr. Lei was the
chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of Huanxi Media Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 1003 and formerly known as 21 Holdings
Limited, during the period from 10 April 2014 to 2
September 2015.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 50, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 26
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and the unlisted
associates of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a
director of Twin Success International Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan, an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 938.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EREEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, aged 53, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. He has over 27 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor
of Administration Degree from the University of
Ottawa in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree
in Professional Accounting from the University of
New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan also holds
directorships in five subsidiaries of the Company.
He is the Company Secretary of the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan is
currently an executive director of SkyNet Group
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market operated by the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 8176, a then 70.18% owned subsidiary of
the Company and formerly known as EDS Wellness
Holdings Limited.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 48, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and re-
designated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 24 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the List of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer of the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since 1 January 2014. Mr.
Cheung has been the director of his own architectural
practice, Oritecture Limited, since 10 December 2009.
He is the younger brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton, an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was an executive director of Huanxi Media
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003 and
formerly known as 21 Holdings Limited, during the
period from 10 April 2014 to 2 September 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 45, has over 22 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 45, has over 13 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a design manager in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993. Mr. Ng joined the Company in
August 2011.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 51, is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 26 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a
company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is currently an
independent non-executive director of Huanxi Media
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003 and
formerly known as 21 Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong
joined the Company in November 2011.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
5% 3L % S Bh ¥

B 4 &t F oA R A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 243, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FElRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-EEF —E—-E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’OOQ
Bt et FET FET
Continuing operations FEKEER
Revenue Wi 7 184,780 88,671
Cost of sales SHE R (95,748) (11,845)
Gross profit EF 89,032 76,826
Investment and other income REREMEFA 8 4,765 2,116
Other gains and losses Hibzs & E18 9 130,344 245,533
Selling and distribution expenses &K 7 X (3,654) (409)
Administrative expenses THAX (88,036) (45,201)
Share of results of associates i NG E 23 - (555)
Profit from operations e RA 132,451 278,310
Finance costs BEE A 10 (1,609) —
Profit before taxation BRBE A 130,842 278,310
Income tax expense Fristip 13 (8,253) (6,898)
Profit for the year from REFERLEER 2EAFE
continuing operations gl 14 122,589 271,412
Discontinued operations EEFIS S F3 S
Loss for the year from RECKIEEEEK S
discontinued operations REEEE 15 (22,988) (46,112)
Profit for the year REERF 99,601 225,300
Profit for the year attributable to: LU~ A T E{EAEFEHEA :
Owners of the Company RDAEE A 105,256 238,077
Non-controlling interests IR R (5,655) (12,777)
99,601 225,300
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER, (FH#E) 16
From continuing and REFELER
discontinued operations EARIEREEK
Basic HA HK9.30 cents &l HK44.75 cents Al
Diluted #E HK9.04 cents &fl  HK44.67 cents 7l
From continuing operations REBELSEEK
Basic HA HK10.83 cents &l HK51.02 cents &l
Diluted s HK10.53 cents &l HK50.93 cents &l
From discontinued operations RECKRIEEEER
Basic B=%iN HK(1.53) cents #Bfl  HK(6.27) cents Ll
Diluted g HK(1.49) cents #B{l  HK(6.26) cents &1l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HERRREfMEEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZ—F—AF 1+ -H=+—HIFEZ

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaF FET FET
Profit for the year KEERR 99,601 225,300
Other comprehensive income for ZAFEHMEEUE
the year, net of income tax RTS8 %
Items that may be reclassified BHEQHEE 7 HEE
subsequently to profit or loss: wmHZHEE -
Exchange differences arising on REBIEREEZ
translating foreign operations EHER (32,117) 1
Reclassification adjustment ERECHEBNEKZ
relating to foreign operations B ERRE
disposed of 55 =
Net (loss)/gain arising on AL EEREE
revaluation of available-for- BEREEZ(ER)/
sale financial assets Wz FRE 26 (42,334) 43,212
Reclassification adjustment FRECHETHEESR
relating to available-for-sale EEZEND AR
financial assets disposed of (74,378) —
Reclassification adjustment FREHHESRERE
relating to impairment loss CHERRESEZ
recognised in respect of B ERAE
available-for-sale financial
assets 73,500 —
Total comprehensive income for Z<&FE2 & 3
the year 24,327 268,513
Total comprehensive income/ UTATEGEXREERZE
(expense) for the year B (FAX) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AATHEEA 29,082 281,290
Non-controlling interests IR RS (5,655) (12,777)
24,327 268,513

The accompanying notes form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBRAE

At 31 December 2015 R-E—HFf+—H=+—H

2015 2014
—E-FREF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kiat FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MERRE 18 420,784 13,074
Investment properties REYE 19 595,448 —
Intangible assets | EE 21 971,888 =
Goodwill HE 22 354,772 89,265
Interests in associates REE AR s 23 - —
Convertible notes receivables FE UL AT AR R 5 24 - —
Deposit for investment RERS 25 - 60,000
Available-for-sale financial assets ARbEESHEE 26 262,672 68,887
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 44 3,792 =
Prepayments O 30 7,979 —
Loans receivables FEU & =X 27 462,456 230,000
3,079,791 461,226
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 28 49,258 27,100
Loans receivables EWE K 27 23,021 720,549
Trade receivables g ZEWFIE 29 62,233 17,232
Deposits, prepayments and other & -~ S FE R HAth
receivables W FRIE 30 98,541 10,495
Amount due from an associate FEU B & A Bl 5k T8 31 2,097 3,528
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFTABERZ
through profit or loss TREE 32 597,658 598,705
Convertible notes receivables FEUR AT AR E i 24 - =
Conversion options embedded in W TgaREERNES 2
convertible notes receivables HInEERE 33 - —
Tax recoverable ] Y [B] 7 18 8,906 =
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 34 - 19,701
Cash and cash equivalents BERESEEY 34 509,341 384,778
1,351,055 1,782,088
Total assets BEEM&AE 4,430,846 2,243,314
EQUITY Em
Capital and reserves attributable 7472 F#EE ABERE R
to owners of the Company e
Share capital &N 35 26,800 5,477
Reserves #E 3,325,510 2,139,174
Equity attributable to owners of ZA&ATEB A
the Company iR 3,352,310 2,144,651
Non-controlling interests IR R S (5) 11,790
Total equity R 3,352,305 2,156,441

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FREMBRAER

At 31 December 2015 R=ZFE—HaF+=F=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B S ENRIE 36 40,220 13,165
Deposits received, accruals and 2ize - ErERAR
other payables Eﬁﬂl@ﬁ%’(lﬁ 37 161,019 17,545
Receipts in advance AU 33,389 =
Other borrowings Eﬂﬂfa EA 38 - 3,850
Promissory notes R EE 39 30,000 6,069
Tax payables FE{S i 18 92,004 21,709
Deposits from customers ERRE 40 - 80
Deferred revenue IEFE U &5 41 - 24,000
Obligations under finance leases Eﬂﬁ?ﬂ%?ﬁ 42 - 444
Bank borrowings IRITHER 43 29,054 —
385,686 86,862
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables HbEA R 37 92,290 =
Obligations under finance leases mﬂﬁ?ﬂ%‘f,\ﬁ 42 - 11
Receipts in advance FEURRR 81,000 —
Bank borrowings fﬁ‘dﬂa R 43 154,953 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHBEAE 44 364,612 =
692,855 11
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,078,541 86,873
Total equity and liabilities EaRkAEARE 4,430,846 2,243,314
Net current assets RBEEFE 965,369 1,695,226
Total assets less current EEABRABIERE
liabilities 4,045,160 2,156,452
The financial statements were approved and REVBRRENR=ZZE—ARE=ZA=1+—HK
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 EESMERBETE  IHTIHATRRSE
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: =1
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
TR PRfEEE
Director Director
EE EE
The accompanying notes form an integral part of FEMT < iR AN S B i& sz 2 — 3o

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEEEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =&

—EEFZAS - ALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANEREARE
Available-
for-sale
Equity-settled financial
share-based assets Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed payment  revaluation  Exchange Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve refiewr\g reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
Bi
WhEEE?  eRER
B&  ROEE  EA8F  REER RORIRE  EGEE  ENRE  EEEE AWK bt FEREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
723 AT F&i F&7 22 -2 723 V7.2 V7.3 AT AT &7
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note o)
W) (2D (W) (B
—E-ME-F-
e R-8-RE-A-A 4,567 450,263 19,844 404,663 16,929 - - 1,240 927,866 1,825,372 (8) 1,825,369
Profit for the year KERA = - - - - - - - 28077 2077 (12777) 225300
Other comprehensive income for the year  AEEEHAEHA
Exchange differences on translating &ES%%E?Z
foreign operations HEE = = = = = = 1 = = 1 - 1
Net gain arising on revaluation of 'I‘MEMQE
available-for-sale financial assets Elfdkeri | - - - - - 43,212 - - = 43212 - 43212
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  AEEREUA/(FR)EE
for the year - - - - - 43212 1 - 238,077 281,290 (12,777) 268,513
Placing of new shares REMRS 910 70,070 - - - - - - - 70,980 - 70,980
Share issue expenses BB 5 - (790) - - - - - - - (790) - (790)
Release of reserve upon deemed disposal  RRfELE-EEENF
of an associate ?ﬁ@ﬁﬁ - - - - - - - (1,240) - (1,240) - (1,240)
Release of reserve upon disposal BLE-BHEL
of a subsidiary }% ﬁﬁ - - ") - - - - - - (1) - ")
Non-controlling Interests arising on fE-EREAREL L
acquisition of a subsidiary FERER - - = = = = = = = = 810 810
Open offer of new shares of a subsidiary  ~EHEARZAREERRR - - - - - - - (1,027) - (1,007) 19,144 18,117
Changes in ownership interests Ry REHE R EHEZRE
in a subsidiary upon desmed HE-BRBAANAR
disposal without loss of control | Sk 5] - - - - - - - 3423 - 3423 4,393 7,816
Changes in ownership interests FRTRRESER-BHE
in a subsidiary upon conversion PELE L g £
of convertible bonds - - - - - - - (43,735) - (43,735) 203 (43,512)
Recognition of equity-setled ﬁ'@%ﬂ%%il
share-based payment BUBES - - - - 10,389 - - - - 10,389 - 10,389
Release on lapse of share options EREAHERE - - - - (7,081) - - - 7,081 - - -
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 W=F-BE+ZA=f-R
BoE-5E-f- AT B950 19833 404660 2025 43212 1 (339 1173024 204650 11790 2,156,441
Profit forthe year REEHH - = = 5 5 = = - 10526 1052 (5665 99601
Other comprehensive income for the year  AEEEHAEHA
Exchange differences on translating &ES%%E?Z
foreign operations 28 - - - - - - (32,117) - - (82,117 - (82,117)
Reclassification adjustments relating EEQE& r@ﬁ %i%z
to foreign operations disposed of EfitE - = = - - - 55 - - 55 - 55
Net loss arising on revaluation of i E%Mﬁéi fhEE
available-for-sale financial assets LEBRRE - - - - - (42,334) - - - (42,334) - (42,334)
Reclassification adjustments relating RECHETHEESR
to avalable-for-sale financial BECENARRE
assets disposed of - - - - - (74,378) - - - (74,378) - (74,378)
Reclassification adjustments relating EEERAVALESR
to impairment loss recognised BEVERBEN
in respect of available-for-sale AERE
financial assets - - - - - 78,500 - - - 73,500 - 73,500
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ~ REE2EUA /(5% 48
forthe year - - - - - 21) (3208 - 526 292 (E5 2430
Exercise of share options TEERE 42 33,724 - - (4942 - - - = 29,205 = 29,205
Issue of new shares upon rights issue  ERERTHRA 5000 407,102 - - - - - - - 43,002 - 43,002
Issue of consideration shares in relation ~ FHE-EHEARRT
to acquisition of a subsidiary KERS 15,000 712,500 - - - - - - - 721,500 - 721,500
Share issue expenses UL i - (9,830) - - - - - - - (9,830) - (9,830)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELE-BHEAR - - - - - - - 41,339 (41,339) - (2,267) (2,267)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests  EXfiFERRR KRS - - - - - - - - - - (3,873) (3,873)
Recognition of equity-settled EEWWE#EZ
share-based payment - - - - 17,800 - - - - 17,800 - 17,800
Release on lapse of share options ﬂéﬂﬁfém%@ - - - - (5,447) - - 5,447 = = =
At 31 December 2015 Ho8-FEt=Azt-A 6400 166300 1963 AOAGE3 27648 - 06 - 1202388 3352310 B 3362305
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBgExR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

Notes:

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium to retained profits/
accumulated losses pursuant to the special resolutions
passed at the special general meetings held on 22 August
2003, 30 April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the
fair value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in equity-
settled share-based payment reserve.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets recognised in other
comprehensive income less those cumulative gains and
losses recycled and recognised in profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets.

pit :

(@ EBEXRFEEWBARAZRARRMEEHED
Classical Statue Limited &g 2 120 8% IR 13 Al
Riche (BVI) Limited (51 Ocean Shores (BVI)
Limited) T84T 2 880 RIR 2 EE R B A Al
BITROABRIBEZEE °

(b) E%’?ﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁfﬁ’\—??_iﬂﬁ TF=E =
ENFRA=+HR=Z——F+=RA+=H
%‘Eﬁzﬁﬁi%ﬁ |XE LBBZBIABRRERA
kKR GESREREEF R EBIE2FHE -

() HUBRBEEZROZUFEENEREBHAR
&*HEQﬂ%ﬂﬁ%u?ﬁﬂiﬁ"rﬂ1§ﬁéﬁ&7}%2®$ﬁ
HBBEDREBRENREABZAFERE
uiﬁ%,ﬁﬂZﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ(‘*ﬁﬁﬁEﬁ
BH(MBE)NBIEE - ARABETRARME
BB - MARELE 2 R0 SR E B EE RS
hn e

d FAHHESHEEEMRBIECHEMEERA
BAZAHHESHEEEM 2R RERE
B MBRRKRILEZTHEESREERD WD
WMEERER 2R REREE °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeRaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

72

2015 2014
—E-Ff —E-mE
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
iifd FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before taxation from continuing REBFELSEEE ZREA
operations gl 130,842 278,310
Loss before taxation from discontinued — RE T K IEE& 5 2 BH
operations RIS 18 15 (22,317) (45,283)
Adjustments for: BUTHEEEL 72 -
Cumulative gain reclassified from equity ~R& ILHEZAHBES R
to profit or loss upon derecognition EECHERENIE
of available-for-sale financial assets ZRHERZBTNE 9 (74,378) (66,883)
Depreciation of property, plant and M REREE
equipment ZIE 18 7,738 2,388
Dividend income BREUA 8 (3,111) =
Gain arising on change in fair value FBREWATRREER
upon conversion of convertible ATEEBESE
notes receivables el 9 - (133,759)
Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair BEAVEFABERZ
value of financial assets at fair value CREELATEEE
through profit or loss EEZER/ (k&) 9 66,286 (27,483)
Gain arising on early redemption of REBERDEKTRRERS
convertible notes receivables EE 2l 9 - (1,611)
Gain on deemed disposal of an RELE—HBEATZ
associate = 9, 23 - (7,669)
Gain on deemed disposal of a RELE—RNBARIZ
subsidiary i 9 (245,072) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENXE BEREREZ
plant and equipment BB/ () 9,15 137 (139)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W& 9, 15 - (1,671)
Gain on disposal of trademark HEBEZ 2 W 15 - (350)
Impairment loss recognised in respect O e IE
of other receivables REESE 15 - 46,519
Impairment loss recognised in respect B —EEKE QT
of amount due from an associate RIBZRERBE 9 1,431 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect ~CRRAREZEHHER
of available-for-sale financial assets BRReHEESER
reclassified from equity to profit or BEEZRERE
loss 9 73,500 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect ERIABEZRERE
of goodwill 9 48,492 —
Imputed interest income on convertible  FEU AR EE 2 (L&
notes receivables FEWA 9,24 - (7,686)
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFIEWA (1,386) (2,179)
Interest expenses MEFX 10, 15 2,463 406
Gain arising on change in fair value of REMENTFEEZBESE
investment properties 2 W s 9 (604) -
Amortisation of intangible assets B SRS 14 5,114 =
Share of results of associates il NG - 555
Equity-settled share-based payment AR R 45 5 2 IR 17 2 5K B
expenses b3 14 17,800 10,389
Written-off of property, plant and WM - BERZE
equipment 15 - 322
Write-down of inventories MEEE 15, 28 3 1

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeBanER
—BEF A=t —HILEE

2015 2014
—2-1F —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Operating cash flows before movements “E&E&E AT
in working capital REBERE 6,938 44,177
Increase in inventories FEEM (16,883) (24,486)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 B IEE (47,312) (11,956)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivables EWE TR /(1 0) 465,072 (238,367)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, %kﬁé AT FRIE R 2 A R
prepayments and other receivables ;EEm),md (3,367) 5,100
Increase in financial assets at fair value ?E’D\${E SFABREZ
through profit or loss CREELM (65,239) (213,372)
Increase in trade payables B 5 BRI m 24,968 12,766
Decrease in deposits received, accruals SRS - BHERAR
and other payables Hib BRI (8,693) (1,341)
Increase in receipts in advance TR FRIRIE N 258,716 -
Decrease in deposits from customers EERERED (34) (14)
Increase in deferred revenue IEFE WL ER 12N 556 2,131
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &&&E4L /(FTH)EE 614,722 (425,362)
Interest paid EFFIE (1,360) (58)
Tax paid EIHRE (19,424) (2,735)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETHEE(FA)BES
operating activities T 593,938 (428,155)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Acquisition of convertible notes R TRR RS
receivables - (40,000)
Dividend received EWRE 3,111 =
Interest received 2 RFE 1,379 2,179
Interest received from convertible notes F'EH&—H‘*EQ:FF%—ZEU&
receivables FE - 4,241
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on acquisition WREHEAF2 RS (R
of subsidiaries S RNFEE 46 (847,455) 30,658
Net cash inflow on disposal HEMBARZRERA
of subsidiaries T 47 - 1,999
Net cash outflow on deemed disposal of B{EHE—REMBATZE
a subsidiary SREFE 47 (161,878) -
Payment of deposit for investment IRERS - (60,000)
Withdrawal/(placement) of restricted bank =El (£ A)ZR&IEIT
deposits R 7,045 (38)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- &ETfEE%ﬂéﬁﬁ%
sale financial assets 26 99,881 94,170
Proceeds from disposal of property, H:Il%%¥ BERZERS
plant and equipment ] 373 160
Proceeds from early redemption of kEP@EWT#% B2
convertible notes receivables e - 27,000
Purchase of property, plant and ﬁ%ﬁ%% Hz%& ]
equipment 18 (10,216) (870)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE(FA) EE
investing activities REeFE (907,760) 59,499
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeRaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—HF+-HA=1—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-EEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
iifd FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Exercise of share options TIEIERRRE 29,205 =
Issue of new shares upon rights issue IR ITH ARG 413,002 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & {13E#% fo&ﬁnZHx s (3,873) =
Net proceeds from issue of new shares  {THRM FIERIE - 70,190
Net proceeds from issue of new shares  HiB2 7§'§ﬁ¥ﬁﬂ§iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
of a subsidiary RIEFER - 25,933
Proceeds from other borrowings HMERTERE 14,226 2,450
Repayment of obligations under finance BEBRESENR
leases (443) (293)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITERAAIR (6,116) -
Repayment of other borrowings E{’@{Eﬁiﬁ (3,850) -
Repayment of promissory notes %Rmﬂiﬁ%ﬂ (6,402) (7,000)
Share issue expenses IRAD AT (9,830) -
Net cash generated from financing METHEE2HEEE
activities 425,919 91,280
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBREESENEM
cash equivalents (R2) 358 112,097 (277,376)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzREeRBASEEY
beginning of the year 384,778 662,153
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgmovE
changes 12,466 1
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZBAECRBESEEY
of the year 509,341 384,778
Analysis of the balances of cash and BE&RBELEZEBYERINT
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand BITRFERS 509,341 384,778
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITER 34 - 19,701
500,341 404,479
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZRHEBITER - (19,701)
Included in cash and cash equivalents SFAGREHBMRREZZ
per consolidated statement HeRHeEEY
of financial position 34 509,341 384,778
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEMf 2 M AR e M ERRZ2—HD -

these consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its issued shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office, and head office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
distribution of films, sub-licensing of film rights,
sale of financial assets, property investment,
money lending, and design and sale of jewelry
products. The Group was also engaged in
development, distribution and marketing of
personal care treatments, products and services,
which were discontinued in current year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’000), which is the functional
currency of the Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning from 1 January 2015.

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions
from employees or third parties under defined
benefit plans. When the contributions are
eligible for the practical expedient provided
by the amendments, a company is allowed to
recognise the contributions as a reduction of the
service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, instead of including them
in calculating the defined benefit obligation.
The amendments do not have an impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Group does not have any defined benefit plans.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements
contain amendments to nine Standards with
consequential amendments to other Standards.
Among them, HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
has been amended to expand the definition
of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity and to require the
disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining
the key management personnel services provided
by the management entity. These amendments
do not have an impact on the Group’s related
party disclosures as the Group does not obtain
key management personnel services from
management entities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative'
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation’
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
(Amendments)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle'
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception'

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

Except as described below, none of these
new and revised HKFRSs is expected to have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to
include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described
below:

° all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised
in profit or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the retrospective quantitative effectiveness
test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have
a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (the “CO”).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “new
CO”) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015. Further,
the disclosure requirements set out in the
Listing Rules regarding annual financial
statements have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly, the presentation
and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015
have been changed to comply with these
new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or the Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended the
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeEMBEEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESHBEME(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HFEEEE)
Business combinations (Continued) EHSOFE)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and the fair value of
the acquirers’ previously held interest is
less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries without change of control

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decision of the
investee but not control or joint control over
these policies. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate
(which includes long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group determines at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of associates’ in profit or
loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associates that
are not related to the Group. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest
in associates are recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in consolidated statement of the
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) (or groups of
CGU) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the
CGU may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition during the reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of the reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and
then to the other assets of the CGU on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the CGU. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as held
for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The non-current assets are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
in profit or loss, which comprises the
post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operations and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operations.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customers, the type of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the titles are passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts become
unconditional.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income arising from money lending
is recognised on a time proportion basis
taking into account the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from sales of beauty products and
the jewelry products is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time
when the beauty products and the jewelry
products are delivered to customers.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

Revenue from provision of therapy services
is recognised when services are provided.
Payments that are related to services not
yet rendered are shown as deposits from
customers and deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.

Interest income from financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for such investment property is
measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS 12
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
(i.,e. based on the expected manner as to
how property will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

3.33%
3.33%-5%
20%-33.3%
20%-33.3%
20%
15%-20%
10%-20%

Golf courses

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Furniture and fixtures
Plant and machineries

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair values. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in
profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
are determined using the first-in-first-out or
weighted average method as appropriate.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as cost of sales in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as cost of sales in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”
(“FVTPL”), “available-for-sale” (“AFS”)
financial assets and “loans and receivables”.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other
than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial asset is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

(i) on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading or contingent consideration
that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a
business combination may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

() such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

(i) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

(iiiy it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 55 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as AFS financial assets
and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of “available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve”. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables
(including convertible notes receivables,
loans receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate,
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Convertible notes receivables held by the
Group are separately presented as debt and
embedded conversion option components.
On initial recognition, the debt component
represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the embedded conversion
option component. The debt component is
classified as loans and receivables and is
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets are
assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 180 days,
as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account
to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities,
impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
payables, deposits received, accruals
and other payables, other borrowings,
promissory notes, obligations under
finance leases and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade receivables
is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign
currency borrowings relating to assets
under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “exchange
reserve” (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as obligations
under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, with
the employees’ contributions subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to 1 June
2014). The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5%
of relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share awards is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity
in the consolidated statement of financial
position will be made over the remaining
vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium when
the share options are exercised and when
the restricted share awards are vested.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for
goods or services with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair values of
the goods or services received, unless that
fair value cannot be reliably measured, in
which case the goods or services received
are measured at the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair value of the goods
and services received is recognised as
expenses with a corresponding increase in
equity (equity-settled share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1)

)

@)

(i) An e

has control or joint control over
the Group; or

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

ntity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:

(1)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party; or

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

(8) the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts
of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of intangible assets

Despite the fact that the services
agreements can be terminated by giving not
less than 12-month’s prior written notice to
the Group, the directors of the Company
determine the services agreements have
indefinite useful lives as they have no expiry
date.

The Group performs annual tests on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4(l) to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of intangible assets are determined
based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value in use calculations.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the
end of each reporting period or whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is
the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. An estimation
of the value in use of the CGU involves
estimating the future cash flows expected to
arise from its continuing use and applying
the appropriate discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are stated at fair
value based on the market values, being
the estimated amount for which properties
could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction or the
valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and
assumptions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised
their judgements and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there be
any changes in assumptions due to change
of market conditions, the fair value of the
investment properties will be adjusted
accordingly.

Assessment of economic useful lives of
fixed assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

Fixed assets and intangible assets with
finite useful lives other than goodwill
are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment
of estimated useful lives is a matter of
judgement based on the experience of the
Group, taking into account factors such as
technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical
wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness.
Due to long lives of assets, changes to the
estimates used can result in variations in
their carrying amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Trade receivables and loans receivables

The aged analysis of trade receivables
and loans receivables are reviewed on
a regular basis to ensure that the trade
receivables and loans receivables balances
are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit
periods or terms of loans have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivables
and loans receivables balances is called into
doubts, specific provisions for impairments
are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aged analysis of the trade
receivables and loans receivables balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to profit or loss. Changes
in the collectability of trade receivables
and loans receivables for which provisions
are not made could affect the results of
operations.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(g) Valuation of financial instruments

(h)

The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Notes 33 and 55 to the
consolidated financial statements provide
detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of financial instruments, as
well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for
these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions used are appropriate
in determining the fair value of financial
instruments.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. The directors of the Company
reassess the estimations at the end of
reporting period.

Fair value of contingent consideration
arising from business combination

Contingent consideration arising from
business combination is valued using a
discounted cash flow model, based on the
estimated compensation received by the
Group, discounted using the applicable
prevailing market rate. The estimation of the
compensation is based on the estimated
profits of the acquiree.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s operating segments have been
determined based on the information reported to
the Chairman of the Board, being chief operating
decision maker, that are used for performance
assessment and to make strategic decisions. The
Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s operating
segments represents a strategic business unit
that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other operating segments. The
Group currently has five operating segments:
(a) Distribution Distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights

(b) Property
investment

Leasing of rental properties

(c) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets
assets

(d) Money lending Money lending

(e) Sale of jewelry Design and sale of jewelry
products products

Provision of management services was
discontinued during the year ended 31 December
2014.

Sale of beauty products and provision of therapy
services was discontinued in the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=F

6.

—BFE+ZA=F—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REQI(E)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable revenue, BE2-ZE—HERKR=-ZE—-—NE+=H
results, assets, liabilities and other selected =+—HLEFE AEBRKEDIE
financial information for the years ended 31 DAL KNE  FE -EE A
December 2015 and 2014 by operating segments EREMBEMNHER 2T :
is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—S—FFE+=-B=+—HILEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
b e fgxy
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision
Property financial Money jewelry of therapy
Distribution  investment assets lending products Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
2RERR
HE #HE RiEE
B NERE SREE #E KEER gt it &a
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- FAT AT -2 AT FAT AT -
Revenue 63
Segment revenue A - 9,099 (14,175) 72,529 117,32 184,780 37,021 221,801
Results |
Segment (loss)/profit (L) /&R (58) (55,677) (78,097) 38,256 14,838 (80,738) (21,434) (102,179)
Interest income on bank deposits BOEHZABHA 1,148 238 1,386
Unallocated corporate income FAREEUA 506 1 507
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLERR (32,105) (129) (32,234)
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEHE- WE’Y]?W% 245,072 - 245,072
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount BEIRNBEAATE
due from an associate HEFE (1,431) - (1,431)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERAEZER 1) (136) (137)
Write-down of inventories WEzE - () 4]
Finance costs BEER (1,609) (854) (2,463)
Share of results of associates RUEBENTEE - - -
Profit/loss) before taxation BiaRR /(58 130,842 (22,317) 108,525
Income tax expense FiEHiE% (8,259) (671) (8,924)
Profit{oss) for the year REEEA/ (58 122,589 (22,988) 99,601

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K&EHEH)

At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB-—HE+=A=+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B4
FEEERE HEES S
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision
Property financial Money jewelry of therapy
Distribution  investment assets lending products Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
FRERR
#E #E RUHE
B 3 tREE &8 HEER Mt it e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET 77 FE7 FET FET 77 FEr FET

Assets and liabilities BEREE
Assets 1]
Segment assets for operating segment E=adz08E
— Hong Kong — & 264 1,265 1,059,867 594,426 134,498 1,790,320 - 1,790,320
— The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC’) —REAREAE(HE]) - 2515173 - - - 2515173 - 2515173
264 2,516,438 1,059,867 594,426 134,498 4,305,493 - 4,305,493
Unallocated corporate assets FAELEEE 125,353
Consolidated total assets GREELE 4,430,846
Liabilties 8&
Segment liabilties for operating segment ZerPzaReR
— Hong Kong — &k (20) (327) (12,126) (6,424) (41,568) (60,465) - (60,465)
— The PRC —HE - (900,311) - - - (900,311) - (900,311)
(20) (900,638) (12,126) (6,424) (41,568) (960,776) - (960,776)
Unallocated corporate liabiities FIRLEER (117,765)
Consolidated total liabilities GREEEE (1,078,541)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —F—HF+=FH= : Hitfﬁf;%’ .
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—HAF+-A=+—HLEFE

130

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
i (e ezl
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision
Property financial Money jewelry of therapy
Distribution investment assets lending products Sub-total services Unallocated ~ Consolidated
#E
£RERR
#E #E il 3]
&f WERE SHEE 2§ HRER Dt B AR g
HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
43 iz 223 iz iz 7Er iz 23 2
Other segment information AfyaieEs
Amounts included in the measure of HEANEA/(ERIRATEEN
segment profitloss) and segment itAZeE
asses
Additons to property, plant and FENE  HERZE
equipment - 11 - - 111 7,884 233 - 10216
Amortisation o inangible assets EREENE - (5,114) - - - (5,114) - - (5,114
Cumulative gain reclassifed fom equity HALBITEESRERS
to profit orloss upon derecognitin HERENIBEERR
of avallable-for-sale financial assets LEithE - - 74,378 - - 74,378 - - 74378
Depreciation of property, plant and W% BERZELE
equipment - (8,747) - - (122 (3,869) (3,869) - (7,738)
Dividend income REMA - - 31 - - 3111 - - 311
(Gain arsing on change in far value of RENFATEZEEE
investment propertes b - 604 - - - 604 - - 604
Impairment loss recognised i respect of BRATALESHERRE
avalable-for-sel financial assets EFBERERIIE
reclassified from equty to profit or i
loss - - (73500 - - (13500) - - (13500)
Impairment loss recogrised inrespect of BEIEEHENR
qoodil - (#8492 - - - (#8492 - - (#6492
Loss arising on change n fair value RATEITABRRZ EHER
o financial assets at fair value AVEREELER
through profit or loss - - (66,266) - - (66,286) - - (66,286)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeEMBEEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDI (&
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NF+-A=+—HLEFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FEfEsE BALEEER
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision of Provision of
Property financial Money Jewelry therapy ~ management
Distribution investment assels lending products Sub-total senices senvices  Consolidated
#E
FRERR
#E e RitEE RiteR
& VEZ SHEE 8 HRER Nt v i b
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK8000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
74 723 243 7Er &7 23 43 4 &7
Revenue Wi
Segment revenue APhE = = (3.918) 18,316 14273 88,671 22,084 158 110,913
Results b |
Seqent (ossprft 54(58)/ 8 W 028 8230 7525 ) 182882 (1551 18 161,454
Interest income on bark deposits RERZABNA 2116 6 = 2179
Unallocated corporate income RABEEHA - 1626 - 1626
Unallocated corporate expenses KORLERL (37.210) ) = (37314
(Gain arsing on change i fai value upon conversion ~ $ABKTARZEALT
of convertole notes recelvables ERgEL NG 133,759 - - 133,759
(Gain arising on eary redemption of convertiblenotes  ERHAEATARE
receivables BB 1611 - - 1611
(Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RiFLE-EREDT
2hE 7,669 = - 7,669
(Gain on disposal of prperty, plant and equipment HENE  BERE
L 130 9 - 139
(Gain on disposalof subsidiares HENBA NS 32 1,359 = il
(Gain on disposal of trademark HERE G - 30 - 30
Impairment loss recagnised in respect of other BRTAMERE
receivables REEE - (46519) - [48519)
Imputed interest income on convertible notes EUTRRZE (58
receivables HEHA 7,686 - - 768
Wite-down of inventories fiiEE _ ) _ f)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment LEHER T _ ) - 02)
Finance costs HEER = (406) = (406)
Share of results of associates EluEN 758 (555) - - (555)
Proftlss) before taxation iR/ (BB 218310 (45,436) 153 283027
Income tax expense fiaBms (6,8%8) (629) = (r,7en)
Proftloss) for the year KEERH/ (58) 71412 (45,265 153 225300

KRB RAERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl Z ==

—BEFCAE—ALEE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

SN

At 31 December 2014 R-E—MNME+=-_A=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
i e BRLEERR
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision of Provision of
Property financial Money Jewelry therapy ~ management
Distribution investment assets lending products Sub-fotal services senices  Consolidated
#E
ZRERR
#® ## fitEE RfteE
& xRE SHEE £ HEER it i §i b
HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
7En V.13 7 727 7Ei i3 727 .23 7Ei
Assets and labilies KERSR
Assets &
Seqment assets for operating segment HEEPRES T
— Hong Kong —&% 253 2,35 97,667 979249 4378 2,018,922 161,362 - 2175284
- The PRC -8 = = = - - - 4 - 4
23 235 97,687 979,249 4378 2,013,922 161,366 - 2,175,288
Unallocated corporate asses KoRbEEE 68,026
Consoldated otel assets GREESE 2243314
Liabilies 8
Seqment labities for operating segment PR
- Hong Kong -k = (160) (12.908) (8,585) (13,778) (35,431) (61,311) - (16,742)
- The PRC —%E - - - - - - - - -
- (160) (12.908) (8,585) (13,778) (35,431) (#1,311) - (16,742)
Unallocated corporate liabltes KORLEEE (10,131)
Consoldeed tota it faaEgE 8673

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeEMBEEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REQI(&E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NEF+-A=+—HLFE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

FEEERR BALEERE
Sale of
beauty
products and
Sale of Sale of provision of Provision of
Property financial Money Jewelry therapy ~ management
Distribution investment assets lending products Sub-total senvices senices Unallocated ~ Consolidated
#E
ZRERR
## 2 iR fiteE
& EES SHEE f§ HEER it i LS AR g

HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
23 i3 i i 23 &1 i i &1 FEn

Other segment information AftAHER

Amounts included in the measure AR/ (BBIR
of segment profit{loss) and APEERITAL
segment assets k1

Additions to property, plant and RENE BERAE

equipment - - - - 390 390 467 - 13 870
Cumulative gan reclassfied from AR ERTRHESR

equity o profit or loss upon EEfkRER

derecogniton of avallable-for- EffBEERR

sale financial assets &R - - 66,883 - - 6,883 - = = 66,883
Depreciaion of property, plantend 4% » HERR(E2ITE

equpment - i ) - ) 67 P22 - - 3
Gain arising on change n farvalue ~ RAPETABRFL

of fnencial asefs at ai value SHEELNTES

ihrough protorloss BEL I = = 748 - - 27483 - - - 27483

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2014: Nil).

Segment results represent profit earned/(loss
incurred) by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of
associates, investment and other income, other
gains and losses, finance costs and income tax
expense. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

X E2HzABBEEAHIEFELE
2@ e AFEETESLEHE(ZF
—UE &) -

0 EPRAEIE B 0 ABREARR](BEEW

BE) > HIESEHRTHMAX (B
EEME  BEBREQTXR RER
HAAWA - f&ﬂ&ﬁﬁ&)&ﬂa CREEA

RFFEBIE) o T35 5 BB R
’**H@ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂf%ﬁ%%&%}\iﬁZ@i

=H%E .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—HF+-HA=1—HIFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

For

the purposes of monitoring segment

performance and allocating resources between
segments:

all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than amount due from an
associate, certain deposits, prepayments,
and cash and cash equivalents that are
not attributable to individual segments.
Assets used jointly by individual segments
are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than current tax liabilities
and certain accruals, other payables and
receipts in advance that are not attributable
to individual segments. Liabilities for which
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

Geographical information

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external
customers and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location are detailed

llg% /ﬂ-\%[; (I‘Z'é-.;)
REEIBRERRIHBEIEER :

&

MRABKREE ATRRIE & TR
2 HEARE - URBEERREE
BT ABR DI IEEE
HOBMELEDER o @RI EBHE
FRAZEERER D I HRE 2 W &=
2 &

B S8 E B AR T A B
A BABE A RERAYKET 3
ARSI FEABSHEE
BEHW - FWBRAEEZ AR
SBEELAHE -

REFBFERES BFIRPEEE -
AEEZBEEDNREHITF 2V

@R

BREFRBEEZERFHINOT ¢

below:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Revenue from Revenue from Continuing operations Discontinued operations
external customers external customers Non-current assets* Non-current assets*
ReREOERE PEREYEE 4 REREOERE RECALEEER
EHNRFRME EHNEFRUE FhagE: Fhags:
2015 214 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-1fF  CE-BE Z%-1F  CR-BE Z%-1F CR-PMF Z§-RF CE-IF
HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000
A1 AT A1 7&1 AT 7A1 AT 741
Australia 2 50 - - - - - - -
Furope B 10,219 1,265 - = - = - =
Hong Kong At 118,692 84,753 3,02 22,084 725,530 430,311 - 30,911
Macau BH - - - 158 - = - =
The Middle East R 5,106 - - - - - - -
The PRC Gl 9,099 - - - 2350469 - -
The United States of America £H24RE 40,555 2633 - = - = - =
184,780 88,671 37,021 2240 3075999 430,311 - 30,915

*

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDI(E)
Information about major customers FREXEREFZ2EHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding REEFTFEREBEFZWZRAAEER
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue WEERI10% L LT -
of the Group are as follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BEt+t-A=1t—HLEEE
2015 2014
—E—RE —E-ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer 11 EE 1 21,219 N/A3
Customer 22 =2F 22 N/A3 10,376
Customer 32 =532 N/A3 10,000
Customer 42 B 42 N/A3 9,113
1 Revenue from sale of jewelry products L REHEHKRBERZ W&
2 Revenue from money lending 2 REMEEZWE
E The corresponding revenue did not contribute over E AEI A A &5 O R o) AN SR [E 4B W R E JRk 10% BA
10% of the total revenue of the Group i
REVENUE 7. W=
For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Sale of financial assets at fair value HERAFETABRERZ
through profit or loss, net SREE  FHE (14,175) (3,918)
Interest income on loans ERFE U A 72,529 78,316
Rental income HEWA 9,099 —
Sale of jewelry products HERBEEM 117,327 14,273
184,780 88,671

KEREZRERRAR
—E-REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. W= (#E)
Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair value HERATEIFABRRZERMEEZ
through profit or loss is recorded on a net basis, WERIRFEEESN - FBWT ¢

details of which are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

2015 2014
—Z2-1% —ZF—NOF
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Proceeds from sale of financial assets $§ERAFEFTABRERZ

at fair value through profit or loss TREEZBRIE 622,551 46,800
Carrying amounts of financial assets at Z AP {ET ABRZRZ SR

fair value through profit or loss plus BEEZERABES MRS

transaction costs EH (636,726) (50,718)
(14,175) (3,918)
8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8. RERHMIKWA

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2015 2014
—Z2-1F% —ZF—M0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Continuing operations FEREER
Dividend income BREWA 3,111 —
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEUWA 1,148 2,116
Sundry income FETEUA 506 —
4,765 2,116

136 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

e M B RRMEE

A Ee — A IEFE

9. HttlhmREE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Continuing operations BEEEXK
Cumulative gain reclassified from RELTEIRAAHLEESR
equity to profit or loss upon EF&EE*E@E%E ok i}
derecognition of available-for-sale ZEBRRZETWE
financial assets 74,378 66,883
Gain arising on change in fair value of REVEAFEEHELEZ
investment properties g 604 —
Gain arising on change in fair value HBEW AR EEE
upon conversion of convertible notes AP EZBEL W
receivables - 133,759
Gain arising on early redemption of REBOEKRITREREEE
convertible notes receivables pdl g - 1,611
Gain on deemed disposal of a RIEHE—BHRBELARZ
subsidiary Wz 245,072 —
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIELE—BBEE AT Z
associate g - 7,669
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE - 312
Impairment loss recognised in respect ©#E:R YRS N T FUEZ
of amount due from an associate WIEE B (1,431) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect CHERAHHELSRMEER
of available-for-sale financial assets ERENIEZEEERZ
reclassified from equity to profit or REEE
loss (73,500) —
Impairment loss recognised in respect CEREEZBEERE
of goodwill (48,492) -
Imputed interest income on convertible FEUR TR ZE 2 HERE
notes receivables A - 7,686
(Loss)/gain arising on change in fair BRAFEFABRRZER
value of financial assets at fair value @~ BEAFEEBHELZ
through profit or loss (E58),Wa (66,286) 27,483
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE BMERSZHEZ
plant and equipment (B518) W= (1) 130
130,344 245,533

KRR SRR
“nggy 197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M B R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. MEEH

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2015 2014
—E—-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HERE
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 1,609 =
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 11. EERTHRERZHE

OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or
payable to the directors and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company during the year was
HK$39,560,000 (2014: HK$24,915,000), of which
HK$39,457,000 (2014: HK$24,866,000) was
included in “administrative expenses” under
continuing operations and HK$103,000 (2014:
HK$49,000) was included in “administrative
expenses” under discontinued operations.
The emoluments of each director and the
Chief Executive Officer for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 disclosed pursuant to
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance are as follows:

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

FRAENLENERATNESRITHAR
2 B & 42 %8 5 39,560,00058 T (=& —
PO4F : 24,915,000787T) @ HA1 39,457,000
B t(Z & — @ : 24,866,000 7T )
FARBEBELKEERTITHEHAXZ IR
103,00078 jt (= & — @ £ : 49,0008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries, allowances
Fees and benefits in kind
Name of director f £ ik ¢ 2HRENER

2015 2014 2015 2014

e M B RRMEE

1. EERTTRARZHNE (@)

Equity-settied
Contributions to share-based
Discretionary retirement benefits ~ payment expenses
bonus schemes HRELSE 2 Total
Miea RICRR LR LUBEH gt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Z%-1f “%-Mf -“%-1f “B-MF -“F-1fF “B-MF “3-1F -B-MF “3-1F CE-MEF CF-1fF CE-QE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S000 HK$'000  HK$S000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000
fAr  FEr TAr FEr  TAr  FEr  TAr  FEr  TAr T TAr  FEn
Executive directors YiTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chief ~ B4
Executive Officer (YR - - 6,600 6,600 8,000 4,000 18 17 1,575 - 16,193 10,617
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Eiton ~ REIE %4 - - 6,600 6,600 8,000 4,000 18 17 1,575 - 16,193 10,617
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy RiEss - - 1,474 1,185 3,000 1,000 18 17 1,246 755 5,738 2,957
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEELE 120 120 900 180 38 60 18 4 - - 1,076 364
Independent non-executive  BYiHTES
directors
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan REEEE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERAEE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments Hesm 480 480 15574 14565  19.038 9,060 72 55 4,396 755 39,560 24,915

The executive directors’ and the Chief Executive
Officer’s emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
director’s emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

Certain executive directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are entitled to
bonus payments which are determined based on
their duties and responsibilities in the Group.

LERRZBTESRITREB ZHME
FEARENERLAQRARFIEEASH
RUEBRBE2ME - LHRBIFHATES
WEETEAREFEATLTAESTRAR
Bz -

RATRETHTESRITHRAREEE
BIRAL DREBEESENRAEE ZBBER
BEEEE -

KEREZRERRAR
—E-REER
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors and the Chief Executive
Officer regard as senior management of the
Group. Their emoluments are within the following
bands:

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ - FE—FHF+-HA=1—HIFFE

EERTRARZME (@)

EERTHABRAAEE 2SRER
AE - HMENFUTEHER :

Number of individuals

AH
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 ZBTE1,000,0008 T - 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 & T £ 3,000,000 7 7T 1 1
Over HK$3,000,000 3,000,000 8T A £ 3 2

During the year, certain directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group under the share option scheme of the
Company. Details of the share option scheme are
set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, no emoluments have been paid by the
Group to any of the directors and the Chief
Executive Officer as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12.

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015, three (2014: three) were
directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two)
individuals were as follows:

LTEBREEFEE

BE-Z—HAF+-A=+—HLEF
B NAEERZESHFMALTESD
SHE(ZE—NE: =Z)AKNQAE
B OHECHMEERGEESTHRERM T
MMBEE-BTHB(ZE—NFE:WA)
ZHMEmT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLEFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMREYER
kind 1,347 1,110
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 3,000 =
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIRERIFTEIHRR
scheme 36 34
Equity-settled share-based payment UREEE 2ROZREAX
expenses 2,564 1,623
6,947 2,767

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors of the Company whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as

MENFUTHE2ESHFIALAE
EREREHEBWOT :

follows:
Number of employees
EEAH
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-F
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7t £ 1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 & T - =
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & T E 2,500,000 & 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & T £ 3,000,000 & 7T - —
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & T £ 3,500,000 % 7T 1 —
Over HK$3,500,000 3,500,000 & 7T A £ 1 =

KEREZRERRAR
—E-REER

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M B R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. ISR X

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREHR
— Current tax — REIFIIE (8,832) (8,975)
— Over provision in prior years — tEEBRZEE 21 2,077
(8,811) (6,898)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
— Current tax — NEABLIE (1,012) -
Deferred taxation credit (note 44) IEERLIEIR = (M2 44) 1,570 —
(8,253) (6,898)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise

Income Tax at 25% for the current year.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13.

The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the profit before taxation from
continuing operations per consolidated statement
of profit or loss as follows:

RSB ()

REERSHMAXEGERERANZRE
BREER ZBRBANRNERAOT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Profit before taxation BB B R R 130,842 278,310
Taxation at domestic income tax rate LA i85 R sHH: 17,435 45,921
Taxation effect of: BiksE .
Share of results of associates PGB E A RS - 91
Income not taxable for tax purpose A L BERBUA (76,566) (64,668)
Expenses not deductible for tax Bifg ERAIHIBRE X
purpose 66,933 14,014
Estimated tax losses not recognised RERMATTRIEESE 2,494 13,617
Utilisation of tax losses previously B AR AR ERBIEEE
not recognised (452) —
Over provision in prior years BIFEBZRE (21) (2,077)
Deferred taxation credit ELER IR % (1,570) —
Income tax expense i8R 8,253 6,898

KERBEIRERRAF

—Z-nEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 14, REFERERBE 2 EE BT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit for the year from continuing operations has REFEKSEEB 2 AFE MM
been arrived at after charging/(crediting): S (BN THEEEEBE !

For the year ended
31 December

BET-A=1t-HLFE

2015 2014
—E-1fF “E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations HEGEXR
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEGE 5,114 =
Auditors’ remuneration: REMME :
— annual audit and interim review - FERERTHEH 799 799
— non-audit services — FRERE 2,579 217
3,378 1,016
Cost of inventories sold BHETEZHA 92,798 11,845
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #]% - BERREZITE 3,869 67
Net foreign exchange loss B 5B 1R 145 36
Operating lease rentals in respect of rental HENXzLEHERS
premises 1,955 1,562
Operating lease rentals in respect of operating ~ E& @ S&HEHRE
rights 4,318 =
Less: operating lease rentals capitalised B EEREEHERS (2,856) -
1,462 -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  FERIBRBEURELE 2 KR
in respect of consultancy services YHEX 5,400 6,576
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments): EIRA(BEEEMS) :
— salaries, allowances and benefits in kind — ¢ ZERENER 23,214 17,210
— discretionary bonuses — BB 23,585 9,182
— contributions to retirement benefits scheme ~ — RIKBAIFHEIER 360 139
— equity-settled share-based payment - URBEEE 2 ROZH
expenses 53 12,400 3,813
59,559 30,344
Gross rental income from investment properties REREVERELEzHLE
and operating rights ON (9,099) -
Less: direct operating expenses incurred for B EREERESWAZRENRE
investment properties and operating RSEREE v EELE
rights that generated rental income B
during the year 2,950 =
Less: direct operating expenses incurred for B ERREERERAZREN
investment properties and operating ERKERELECERER
rights that did not generate rental EHX
income during the year 45 =
(6,104) -

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 6 November 2015, EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (“EDS Wellness”, now known as SkyNet
Group Limited and stock code: 8176), a then
70.18% owned subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 345,000,000 new shares
and 30,000,000 new convertible preferred
shares to six subscribers. As a result, the
Group’s shareholding interests in EDS Wellness
was diluted from 70.18% to 12.51% and EDS
Wellness has ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. EDS Wellness carried out all of the
Group’s sale of beauty products and provision of
therapy services operations.

The provision of management services operation
was disposed of on 11 June 2014, details of
which are set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The loss for the year from the discontinued sale
of beauty products and provision of therapy
services, and provision of management services
operations is set out below. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss have been restated to re-present the sale
of beauty products and provision of therapy
services operations as discontinued operations.

—h

e M B RRMEE

A Ee — A IEFE

. BRIEREER
= _

- EFFE+—HBAXB —BA&AAQ
T E B A70.18% 2 Kt B A T EDS
W liness Holdings Limited ([EDS
Wellness | R AMEEHREEBA
BRABRKRMDAIE :8176) M S BRE
A F 2% & % 17 345,000,000 % #7 B% 12
% 30,000,000 A% %7 7] # B% 2 5 AR ©
t o AREEBE KR EDS Wellness 2 35 J& &
= H70.18% # 8 £12.51% + M EDS
Wellness TB AKX QAT Z2H B AT o &K
EEMEHEZRERRIEHEERK
#£7 Ty EDS Wellness 31T ©

RHEERBEBECNR - -—NFAA
T—HHE FREAFHNGRS M B R
RMFEEAT o

ERELHEEZTTERRREHEERER
RESEREEBE 2 AFEEFREY W
e ﬁ%?ﬁé%Zﬂtbiﬁ%?E%@E
o LEHEINHEEZRERRIEMHE
fiﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?’%ﬁ%@i““%ﬁ%

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+—BLHFE

2015 2014
—E2-1%F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loss on sale of beauty products HEXAEmNIEHERE
and provision of therapy services fREEK 2 RFE
operations for the year 518 (22,988) (46,265)
Profit on provision of management RUBEERBEER 2 RFE
services operations for the year gl - 153
Gain on deemed disposal of sale of RIELHEHEERERR
beauty products and provision of ?Et\uxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%i%
therapy services operations (note 9) 2 W (Hrat 9) 245,072 -
Gain on disposal of provision of HERMEERBER 2
management services operations Wess (H1EE9)
(note 9) - 312
222,084 (45,800)

E*W&éﬁﬁ@j
—hREFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15. ERIEKREXEK (&)

The results of the discontinued operations for the
current and prior years are as follows:

RAFERBEFE BRIEEERRK
ZEEWMT -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

146

2015 2014

—E-HF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Revenue Y &= 37,021 22,242

Cost of sales SHEHN A (26,694) (15,155)

Gross profit EF| 10,327 7,087

Investment and other income RERHEMBA 239 1,689

Other gains and losses HAb iz R &8 (139) (45,124)

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (2,004) (941)

Administrative expenses THRX (29,886) (7,588)

Loss from operations KEEE (21,463) (44,877)

Finance costs LA E A (854) (406)

Loss before taxation RR%L AT & 18 (22,317) (45,283)

Income tax expense FreBiR X (671) (829)
Loss for the year from discontinued RECKRIEREEK 2

operations REEFEFE (22,988) (46,112)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15.

The cash flows of the discontinued operations for

FeMBEREME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE
BRIEREERK(F
REAFERBEFE SRLEKLEER
ZEEREBWT :

the current and prior years are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2015 2014
—®-H&E —E-—MEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEFBHREESARAN (R
operating activities THAE 130,409 (1,259)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETHESHRN (R
investing activities FEE 5,312 (412)
Net cash outflow from financing METER SR FEE
activities (342) (2,410)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WERACRE)F5E 135,379 (4,081)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations
has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

ERLEREXB o AREFEFBEIIHEK,
(GFA) THREEREBE :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2015 2014
—E-FEF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration 2B & 29 500
Cost of inventories sold EHEFENA 5,192 3,011
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREZEZINE
equipment 3,869 2,321
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR 2 iam - (1,359)
Gain on disposal of trademark HEBE & - (350)
Impairment loss recognised in respect © T3 H UK IE Z R E
of other receivables E] - 46,519
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE  BMERZEZ
plant and equipment B8 () 136 ©)
Write-down of inventories WRFE 3 1
Written-off of property, plant and MEHMZE - MEREZE
equipment - 322

KRR SRR
“nggy
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fr e M B R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings

per share from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the

16. BREF (F8)

BTHEEBTE

Company is based on the following data:

REFERERCRILEREXE

RABEAAEERB R
LEEXB o BRERNRBERF IR

RE#®

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BHLEE

2015 2014
—2-HF —2@NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to RAREEABEREE
owners of the Company a8 Al 105,256 238,077
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLFE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-F
’000 000
TR Fi
Number of ordinary shares ZHEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt E & IR E A2 R Fr A
shares for the purpose of basic ZERERIMELEE
earnings per share 1,131,842 531,966
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBTERR2FE
shares:
Share options issued by the RATEBITZEBRE
Company 32,144 990
Weighted average number of ordinary R &t &5 i # 8 2 785 fr A
shares for the purpose of diluted ZE B METIIE
earnings per share 1,163,986 532,956

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREF (FHE) &)

17.

(Continued)

From continuing operations REFERE XK

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings FRAREEANRERBESES ‘%%7}%?
per share from continuing operations attributable BRERARBEERNTIEE LT EEST
to the owners of the Company is based on the i

following data:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLHFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FBT
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year from continuing AR EFEA NEGRE A
operations attributable to owners of REXEB 2 RNFERR
the Company 122,589 271,412
The denominators used are same as those MARSR MG ERESHEK DAL
detailed above for both basic and diluted REEB - BREARBERIMEKA
earnings per share from continuing and EHE -
discontinued operations.
From discontinued operations KHERIEEEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per ARREBEABGEREERILEE R
share from discontinued operations attributable ZEBREAREEERRREUT BIE
to the owners of the Company is based on the atE -

following data:

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=+t—BLFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Loss BB
Loss for the year from discontinued AAREEABMLEREEHK
operations attributable to owners of IHREXEE R FEFE
the Company (17,333) (33,335)
The denominators used are same as those FrASRE FMzTERBIEEENNE R IE
detailed above for both basic and diluted R SR ERG B SRR TEREA
earnings per share from continuing and ZHEE o
discontinued operations.
DIVIDENDS 17. R E
The directors of the Company do not recommend RKAFEETAZZRBEBE_ZE—F
the payment of any final dividend for the year F+-A=+—BLEEFEEZ2EMARER
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). B(ZE—UFE : #\#) o

E*Whéﬁﬁﬂj
—hREFEFER
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

—BFE+ZA=F—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=F

18. M1% - BERRKHE

Plant Furniture
Golf  Construction and  Leasehold Office Motor and
Buildings ~courses inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BT FBBARE  HEIE  RERRE HEUERE  BOERE AE FRRRE i
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-4 &1 &7 &7 22 &7 -2 -4 A7
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 R-2-ME-A-A = = = - 2,361 229 1,050 1,093 4,753
Acquisttions through e

business combination (it45)

(note 46) - - - 3,128 8,194 816 - 2,113 14,846
Additions during the year ~ FRFE - - - 31 2 178 - 8 870
Disposals HE - - - 38) - - - - (38)
Witen off ] - - - B (459 - - - (6]
At 31 December 2014 and ~ W=E-IF

1 January 2015 TZA=1-AR

E-RE-f- - - - 4,003 10,399 1,223 1,050 3,29 19,970
Acquisttions through BRERCHIE

busingss combination (it 46)

(note 46) 173,431 67,89 145,141 1,796 33,800 - - 1,859 423922
Additions during the year ~ ERIFE = - 1,667 1,405 - 1,060 - 84 10,216
Derecognition upon deemed WEHE BHEA

disposal of a subsidlary ~ BALBAHEe)

Inote 47) - - - w8 e () - Roe) (16,369
Disposals HE - - - (643) - - - (142) (785)
Exchange alignment EiE (3.330) (1,304) (2267) (#) (649) 8 = (35) (7,638)
At 31 December 2015 A-E-1E

tZR=1-H 170,101 66,591 150,541 1,787 35,764 498 1,050 2,985 420317
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3tHERHE

and impairment
At 1 January 2014 R-3-ME-R-H - - - - 2,381 163 1027 1,003 4,664
Charged for the year REEHE - - - 822 1,060 14 bAl 34 2,388
Wiitten back on disposals ~ HEEEE - - - (17) - - - {17
Written off s - - - Q) (137) - - = (139)
At 31 December 2014and  HZE-IE

1 January 2015 +ZA=1-AR

“E-RE-B-§ = - - 803 3,304 304 1,050 1435 6,896
Charged for the year REEHE 1,001 749 - 1472 2514 713 - 389 7,738
Eliminated on deemed REfFLE-BHELT

disposal of a subsidlary B (47

Inote 47) - - -y e (167 - wy B
Written back on disposals ~ HEEAE - - - (244) - - (31) (275)
Exchange alignment kS 29) (1) - (1) (11) - - (3 (66)
At 31 December 2015 R-8-1%

tZR=t-§ 1,872 738 - 136 3,180 250 1,050 1,307 8,933
Carrying amounts 3]
At 31 December 2015 W-E-1%

tZB=1-R 168,229 65,853 150,541 1,651 32,5684 28 - 1,678 420,784
At 31 December 2014 R-2-m%

tZR=1-R = - - 3,200 7,09% 919 - 1,860 13,074

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=F— A&+ HA=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 31 December 2014, included in the carrying
amounts of plant and machinery and office
equipment of HK$344,000 and HK$19,000 are
held under finance leases respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group has capitalised operating lease rentals of
HK$2,856,000 (2014: Nil).

All of the Group’s buildings, golf courses and

18. 1% - MEKKE (&)

RIE-—NEF+ZA=+—H B®HK
EE 2 3 A 344,000 7T & 19,0005% T
ZHERKENBAZTREDIERER
E#FE o
REBZ-_Z—HF+-A=+—HIEF
B AEEE2,856,0008 (== — 1
FE)ZKEHEHRSERL -

AEEMAERT SERRERAERT

construction in progress are located in the PRC

held on medium-term leases.

RAURHPE » WARRBIES -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWE
2015 2014
—E—A%F —E—-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Fair value NEE
At 1 January n—A—H - —
Acquisition through business BREBKS OIS
combination (note 46) (K&t 46) 606,858 =
Gain arising on change in fair value =~ RiBmK#ER 2 A FERE
recognised in profit or loss (note 9) EE 2 W (A1a29) 604 =
Exchange alignment P 5 SR & (12,014) —
At 31 December BR+=—B=+-—H 595,448 —
Unrealised gain on change in fair FFABRRZREYELT
value of investment properties ERHEL 2 RER WS
included in profit or loss 604 -
2015 2014
—E-hHF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Investment properties located in the NP E R APBENFE
PRC held on medium-term leases ZREYF 595,448 —

All of the Group’s investment properties have
been pledged to secure bank borrowings granted
to the Group.

AEBRAARENECER/BRTEE
BRATRER IR o

KEREZRERRAR
—E-REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—HF+-HA=1—HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

20.

Details of the Group’s investment properties are

19. BEWE (&)

REBREVMEZFFERIMT

as follows:
Attributable

interest to the
Location Existing use Tenure Group
b B BREEAR FH AEERGER
No. 33 Nonglinxia Road Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Yuexiu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
The PRC
PEEREEMDEZSEEM T3S BF RERE A 100%

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available;
and

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

20. REME 2D FEFE

(a) AFEZEH

TRZJIAEERBERARREE
MEEFECREYEQIFE I
RIEFBUBRELAF13RLF
B BEFFREZRFESERIB=
BB - D FEFEZHRB DR
RBEZLTHERLAA 28 AR
BzuBEMREEMMEE :

e FIRME: G EFEAF1H®
ABEHECAFE  BINE
ERNHEBAHREERERGER
SERBRTIS Z R AERE

o F2o2MMEE:EAE2RBA
BEEZAFE  HAEE
ZEABIE  HARBEMZEEE
MzBER B TBREAR
AER 2B ARE -  FTABER
BWABBAETSEBE @A
85 R

e FIRME: EHAERTTSH
EMABBTEZAFE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeEMBEEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_-—FE—h&E 1+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

20. REMEZ LAFEFTE(E)

(@) AFESEHRGE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1H E24 EIR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2015 R=-T—HF
+=B=+—8
Fair value on a BREMBEEFEZ
recurring basis AFE
Investment properties NRFREZRE
located in the PRC LES - - 595,448 595,448

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 (2014: Nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the date of the events
or change in circumstance that caused the
transfer.

The Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2015. The
valuation was carried out by an independent
qualified professional firm of valuer, Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, who
has among its staff members appropriate
qualification with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being
valued. The directors of the Company have
discussion with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at the end of the
reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
investment properties is their current use.

BZE-_Z—HFE+-A=+—HL
FE > F1RE2H 2EHREE

B TEEBEAFEHEIR(=F
—F )  AEBZHEBR

MEEHRERAR S ERLRS
BEH BRATEZR2MZE

B

AEBZRENER-ZFT—-1F
tT-RA=1+—R#ETEM - AET
HBEYSEREXMEMTSHE
BRI EER (B8 BRQAET
HESABREEERE AnaY
FRfbEY 1 E R E B 2 W) 3 2 fh
BHER RERESHRETHE
K ARAESCHMEERKREMG
EAEREGEMETHE -

RIEFTREYE 2 A FEE - RE
MEzBEESREERARINBHEEA

3 o

KEREZRERRAR
—E-REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—HF+-HA=1—HIFFE

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 20. REM=Z A VEE#E)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 fair value (b) EEEIRAFEHITEZEHR
measurements
Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input Range

fEERI EATTEERARE ©€E

Investment properties Income Capitalisation rate 2015: 3.75% to 4.75%

located in the PRC approach (2014: N/A)
VRFEZRENH N7 Bt = —E-HF 3T75% E4.75% (=

E-F : 7ER)

Capitalisation rate is taking into account of ERCERDBES AEZIEZHES WA
the capitalisation of rental income potential, ERE - YYEMEBENEIHRER
nature of the property and prevailing market 2R AFEFEHEER(LLE
condition. The fair value measurements are A EE o
negatively correlated to the capitalisation
rate.
The directors of the Company believes that RNATEEZERE T AEEE
any possible changes in input values would BrzEAogesgiEireE8xyizs
not cause significant change in fair value of MENFEEBZ2ERES
investment properties.
The following table provides a reconciliation TERIREABEBSE RSO EER
of the movement between opening and ABIECHERTLTEREAFEETESD
closing balances of investment properties BMENFEEENFEIF2REYF
classified under fair value hierarchy of Level REAZ R Hi R 2 45 64 2 B ¥ BR -

3, measured at fair value using a valuation
technique with significant unobservable

inputs:
HK$’000
FBT
At 1 January 2014, R=-Z-—NFE—HF—Q -
31 December 2014 and —E-ME+ZA=+t—HBK
1 January 2015 —Z-h¥-—-HA—H =
Acquisition through business combination BIBE S ONE (M 46)
(note 46) 606,858
Gain arising on change in fair value RERRBERZATEEY
recognised in profit or loss (note 9) EE W (HE9) 604
Exchange alignment R (12,014)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB-HF+=-A=+—H 595,448
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=F

e M B RRMEE

—HE T — HIEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21, BREE
Operating rights ~ Operating rights
inrespectofa  inrespect ofa
land in the PRC golf club
(the “Subject in the PRC Services Software
Land”) (the “Club”) agreements and licenses Total
BRTE-GYR EETE-BEE
((EE#R))z *BLB(EkH])
fer Ay B BERBR st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEn FEn FEr FEn FEn
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-H - - 456,857 - 456,857
Derecognition upon disposal of HEMBATMR L5
subsidiaries (note 47) (Hi47) - - (456,857) - (456,857)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-IE
1 January 2015 t-A=+-AR
“2-1f-f-H - - - - -
Acquisition through business FRERAHUE
combination (note 46) (it 46) 938,061 57,948 - 4 996,050
Exchange alignment Bz (18,011) (1,112) - () (19,124)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1f
tZA=1-H 920,050 56,836 - 40 976,926
Accumulated amortisationand Bt B#RAEEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-f-§ - - 454,928 - 454,928
Eliminated on disposal of HEHBA AR
subsidiries (ot 47) (K247) - - (454.928) - (454.928)
At 31 December 2014 and R-3-mE
1 January 2015 tZR=1-
“E-1F-f-H - - - - -
Charge for the year REESH 4737 372 = 5 5,114
Exchange alignment EiAE (70) (6) - - (76)
At 31 December 2015 R=2-1f
tZA=t-H 4,667 366 - 5 5,038
Carrying amounts HEE
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1f
TZA=1-H 915,383 56,470 - 35 971,888
At 31 December 2014 R-2-mF
TZA=1-H = = = = =

The above intangible assets, other than services
have finite useful lives.
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line

agreements,

basis over the following periods:

Operating rights in respect of the Subject Land

Operating rights in respect of the Club

Software and licenses

Such

47 years
37 years
3 years

BRARISHEN - EMBEREEARER

FREH ZEEFEEUES LR
THARS TSN -

EETERCEE 478
EHEHMEEE 374
AR IER 3F

E*Whéﬁﬁﬁj
—hREFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

Operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
was acquired through a business combination
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent (i) the rights to develop and
operate the Subject Land, which is a piece of
580 Chinese acres land adjacent to the Club, and
(i) the rights to manage the properties erected
on the Subject Land up to 30 January 2062
granted todt RILMNEEHB/EHBR AT (Beijing
Bayhood No. 9 Business Hotel Company Limited,
“Bayhood No. 9 Co”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, under the cooperation
construction and operating agreements. The
cost of the operating rights of HK$938,061,000
represents the fair value of such asset valued
by American Appraisal China Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers, as at
6 October 2015, being the completion date of the
business combination.

Operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Operating rights in respect of the Club

Operating rights in respect of the Club was
acquired through a business combination as
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent the rights to manage and operate
the Club located in Beijing, the PRC, which is
a membership-based golf club and resort, up
to 31 December 2051 granted to Bayhood No.
9 Co under the cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The cost of the operating
rights of HK$57,948,000 represents the fair value
of such asset valued by American Appraisal
China Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers, as at 6 October 2015, being
the completion date of the business combination.

Operating rights in respect of the Club are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BREE@®)
FRTREEER

ERERSHNBEERTIRBHR 2KE
BERAZZE—HFE+AARNEEK ZLE
EERBEFERRELEHBRFAL
AZEMB AR NEEKE
EERATTIHIOEATNEBE=Z
ANZFE—BA=Z+H2A () RELH
#RFT 2580 A EBE R 2R ;5 K (i)
EETEMB ECEYE R - ZL
& HE > B 7~938,061,0008 TIEB LS
EREEGEMEXEAFTEERATARS
EZ-RE+ANB(MEBEHZTRA
L2 EBEEZATFE -

BRI REBR 2 EERTIBRAMATT
BN RIPREBR(ME) 25 -

FREMzRER

EREBSHWBEREM2EEERN
—E-AFETAANBER - ZEEREE
BESEERRELEHEE TN
AEABEZER—F+ZHA=+—HZ
FEBERKLENNIRILL TR 22
A ZeEmbeate@AELBRE
JE o SR 2 BN 57,948,000 8 T8
BYSEREXLEMERTFIEESRL
AR-ZZE—AF+AANB(AEKEHZ
ERBEH)FE2EBREECLAFE -

BRESRmcKERDBRARA R R HH
RRZTRESE(WE)Z25 -



21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Services agreements

Services agreements represent services
agreements entered into between gaming
promoters and Rich Daily Group Limited
(“Rich Daily”), a then wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, in relation to the provision
of management services to the concierge
departments of gaming promoters in Macau.
As there is no expiry of the period for the
provision of management services stated in the
services agreements, the services agreements
are considered as having indefinite useful lives.
The services agreements are not be amortised
until their useful life are determined to be finite.
Instead, they are tested for impairment annually
and whenever there are indications that they may
be impaired.

On 30 May 2014, Riche (BVI) Limited (“Riche
(BVI)”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, an
independent third party, relating to the disposal
of the entire equity interest of Rich Daily at
a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000. The
disposal was completed on 11 June 2014.

Trademark

On 2 July 2014, the trademark “Blu Spa” without
any carrying amount was acquired through a
business combination. The trademark was used
by a subsidiary of EDS Wellness on its products
and therapy services. The trademark asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years
and its estimated remaining useful life is five
years at the date of acquisition of EDS Wellness.

On 24 September 2014, the trademark was
disposed of at a consideration of HK$350,000 to
an independent third party. A gain of HK$350,000
on disposal of trademark was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

21.

e M RRME

A Ee — A IEFE

BREE@®)
PR 3% 1

REHBEEBELDINAERDFE R
2 & & KM B 2 " Rich Daily Group
Limited ([Rich DailyJ):TiZHlii%’rﬁ
O AREBEREMABESN AZ?’—
EMRUEERE - HRREHZR
FITREEERE 2EREE Zx:HE
BB ERAREEREETHFEATH &
*EZ:HW%TJ?%@Z{E%iﬁﬁiﬂ%*ﬁ_FEZHu

SHHETHE AN SEREH
%%%EZ:EW@‘T&%T BB ERSYHHE
ETRERR -

RZE—NFERA=1+H XQAFAEE
Kf& X F Riche (BVI) Limited ([Riche
wmnﬁﬁ*”—ﬁ REWEEF
—mEKRGEERRE AFEBIR
2,000,000;‘% T 2B € X EHd ERich
Dailly 2 2% - ZHEBEER=-F
—MERA+T—BRERK °

[k

—EZ-NE+LtA=-H: BBEKSHK
B8 I ([ BR B <2 B 4Z[ Blu Spal ° #%
B2 EDS Wellness ZHtB AT HARE
ERREERS ZBEEEDNRES
EEE20%F 0 RIAEDS Wellness 2 Ik
BAHETRGRERERARE -

RZZE-—NMEABAZ-Z+MAB  ZEEU
350,000 B T2 RELEHET —BBILE
=% o HE®E 2 350,000 % T iR
BZ-_Z-—-NWF+-_A=+—HLFE
2B RER -

E*W&éﬁﬁ@j
—hREFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= &
FEMBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE
22. GOODWILL 22, HE
Total
et
HK$’000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—DNE—HA—H -
Acquisition through business combination FBIBEB SO (M 46)
(note 46) 89,265
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-Z2—NEF+-A=+—HEK
—EZ—-HA&%—H—H 89,265
Acquisition through business combination FBREB SO (M 46)
(note 46) 410,466
Derecognition on deemed disposal of RIEAE HE — BB L Bl R 4L L TR
a subsidiary (note 47) (BsE47) (89,265)
Exchange alignment 0 AR (7,938)
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB-HRFE+=-B=+—H 402,528
Accumulated impairment losses ZFtREEE
At 1 January 2014, R=-Z—NE—-—HA—H -
31 December 2014 and —E-AOF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2015 —E-—FHFE—H—H —
Impairment loss recognised ERZARESE 48,492
Exchange alignment [E AR (736)
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB—AF+=-HA=+—8H 47,756
Carrying amount BREIE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB-HF+=ZA=+—H 354,772
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE+_-_HA=+—H 89,265

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ ==

e M RRME

A Ee — A IEFE

22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22. BHEE)
Impairment test of goodwill R R
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill BETRENR BEESIEEZE=%
has been allocated to three individual CGUs, _LEE%F$$1_L BiE-—EHEEERE
comprising one subsidiary in the sale of beauty mMRREEERE B ZHMBEATD R
products and provision of therapy services BUNEREDH2HMBAR - R=F
segment and two subsidiaries in the property —AFER=ZEBE-NFE+=ZA=+—8H -

investment segment. The carrying amounts of PEREZEEVCHEZRABNT ¢
goodwill as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
allocated to these units are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-—MF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Property investment in Beijing RIEFRZERE
— Smart Title Limited (“Smart Title”) — Smart Title Limited
([ Smart Title |) 293,138 —
Property investment in Guangzhou REMNZIHERE
— Best Volume Investments Limited — Best Volume
(“Best Volume”) Investments Limited
(I'Best Volume]) 61,634 =
Sale of beauty products and EXRERK
provision of therapy services Tmf L T AR A%
— EDS Wellness — EDS Wellness - 89,265
354,772 89,265

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$48,492,000 (2014: Nil) in relation to goodwill
arising on acquisition of Smart Title. The
directors of the Company determines that there is
no impairment of goodwill arising on acquisition
of Best Volume.

As stated in the Company’s circular dated 31 W a0 A A ﬂ HEA-—ZE—HFN\A
August 2015, the directors of the Company has St—HZBERAL AQAREEIE
noticed the consideration for the acquisition of %‘:'JLI&%Smart Title ZREBRBEMRE
Smart Title exceeds the valuation of the Club and Sih R TR 2B EEER S WEEA
the proposed project of hotel villas and high-end BEvEREBEER-_ZT—HF=A=1+—
hotel apartments to be erected on the Subject BB ARARESRABLBMHE
Land as at 31 March 2015. The directors of the MEL XN Z2aH 1’!53% EAm TR
Company consider that the excess represents a BEEBMEAE —EESHKERERFT
premium paid to the vendor in consideration of HENERBBERZRE 6658

the time consumed and resources employed by
the vendor in consolidating operating rights in
respect of the Subject Land and the Club as a
single piece of asset, which provides the synergy
effects of having the Club and the Subject Land
as disclosed on pages 41 to 42 of the circular
and bringing the first phase development at
a substantially completed stage. As such, the
directors consider that the impairment loss
recognised in relation to goodwill arising on
acquisition of Smart Title represent the premium
paid to the vendor.

EHN

MZBREAMM ZI2ERE 2 EREMIR
Ezéﬁﬂif E M HE - WA AR TR
SIAE—HEBR - At EERAEREWK
BE Smart Title M A E R BERSER
RBEH A ZEmE -

E*W&éﬁﬁ@j
—hREFEFER
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of
the above CGUs and their major underlying
assumptions are summarised below:

Sale of beauty products and provision of
therapy services — EDS Wellness

Goodwill of HK$89,265,000 was recognised
on acquisition of EDS Wellness during the
year ended 31 December 2014. The goodwill
represents the listing status of EDS Wellness
and the business operations of its subsidiaries
(together with EDS Wellness referred to as the
“EDS Wellness Group”). For the year ended
31 December 2014, no impairment loss was
recognised as the recoverable amount of goodwill
exceeds its carrying amount. The recoverable
amount is calculated based on the closing price
of HK$2.35 per share of EDS Wellness as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 31 December 2014.

On 6 November 2015, the goodwill arising on
acquisition of EDS Wellness was derecognised
as the Group was deemed to dispose of 57.67%
shareholding interest in EDS Wellness and EDS
Wellness has ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 =—F—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

22. BE#)

AERENSF

UERESEAENZARREERAEE
EHERREERLMNT ¢

HEXEREMRIBREZERHE - EDS
Wellness

REBZ-_FZ-@mNEF+=ZA=+-—H
It & E - 5 W BEDS Wellness i 52
B 289,265,000/ T B £ {5EDS
Wellness 2z Emi{y Kk EKiE A 7 GEE
EDS Wellness#: 78 A EDS Wellness
EEDzEXEREE - BE-_Z—NF
+ZA=t—BLEE TERFE
UKW EBRERMERIRE
EiE - RWRESBENRBBEIFRAN=
E-NWE+=ZH =+ — B Fr$REDS
Wellness W E&E R 2.35 BTt & °

R-ZZE—-